651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENTY Roseville, CA 95678

I A phone  (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

Date: February 20, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 9:35 am at NCPA, 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in
attendance are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the January 16, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting
Motion: A motion was made by Pauline Roccucci and seconded by Mark Chandier to approve
the Minutes of the January 16, 2020, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a

majority on a voice vote of those members present. San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port
of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the public addressed the Commission.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

— Gave an update on NCPA's Support and Shared Services Agreements and provided a
copy of the monthly status report.

— The proposed NCPA FY21 Budget is being vetted through Agency Committee’s over the
next few months. Did ask staff to go take another look at their budgets and do their best
to reduce dollars to help with the unexpected failure at the Lodi Energy Center and the
impact at the Geothermal facility due to the Kincade fire.

— Met with Calpine and discussed future wild fire plans for the Geothermal area.



- Met with Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner Brenda Burman regarding Reclamation’s
proposal on true-ups.

— Met with California Energy Commission staff regarding the Sacramento Municipal Utility
District (SMUD) bringing back it's community solar program in their service territory.
NCPA supports their efforts and does plan to send support letters to the legislature.

— Steve Berberich, CEO of the CAISO, after 14 years, announced his plans to retire before
the end of the year.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard reports from the General Manager and General Counsel.
The Committee also met in closed session. No reportable action was taken. The
Committee discussed item 26 on today’s agenda and recommended Commission approval.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed Consent items 17-21, and
Discussion/Action items 22-24 on today’s agenda. A quorum of the Committee was
established. The Committee did recommend Commission approval of all items.

6. Finance Committee

Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks reported that Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee received a report on the current condition of the financial
markets from PFM. PFM stated that rates continue to drop and this has improved the estimated
savings on refunding the 2012 Hydroelectric bonds. The Committee requested staff hold a
Special Finance Committee meeting and include the Hydro project participants to review the
refunding opportunity. As of the meeting, the estimated savings using a short-term, 2y forward
starting swap is over $15m or 20.5% NPV savings. The special meeting has been scheduled for
February 25.

Staff provided presentations on NCPA’'s Debt & Interest Rate Management Report ending
December 31, 2019, and an update to the Agency’s Investment Policy. These are items 15 and
16 on today’s agenda. Both were recommended for acceptance and/or approval.

NCPA staff also provided the Committee with an update of the long-term funding plan and
status NCPA'’s pens;on program.. NCPA'’s funded percentage continues to improve and this is in
light of PERS lowering of the discount rate from 7.25% to 7.00%. The Committee affirmed the
continuation of funding at the 15-year amortization schedule.

The next Committee meeting is scheduled for May 12, 2020, at 10:30 am.
7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed the Community Solar Development and
Consistency with the Surplus Lands Act, the Clean Fuel Reward Program Governance, as
well as a General Counsel update. The Committee also met in closed session. No
reportable action was taken.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
February 20, 2020



8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Chair Mark Chandler reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee reviewed and discussed the proposed Legislative and Regulatory
Affairs budget for FY21. The Committee recommended Commission approval of the
budget. The Committee was also provided updates on the federal power program,
customer programs, regulatory affairs, member programs, and was given a report on federal
and state legislative issues. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on April 15.

9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting
Commissioner Pauline Roccucci, Roseville, reported that the City of Roseville will sign a water
supply contract extension next week, which will provide long-term reliability to the community.

She also mentioned that Andy Fecko was named the new General Manager of the Placer
County Water Agency, replacing Einar Maisch who announced his retirement a few months ago.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the
Consent Calendar. No items were pulled from Consent.

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’'Neill and seconded by Mark Chandler to approve the
Consent Calendar consisting of ltems 10-21. The motion carried by a majority of those
members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item. San
Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended December 31, 2019 — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended December 31, 2019 - accept by all members.
12. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended January 31, 2020 — approval by all members.
13. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended January 31, 2020 — accept by all members.

14. Disposal of the Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property — note and file by
all members for disposal of the following: Scrap metal (Lodi Energy Center); 1 VT 100
Terminal (Hydroelectric); 3 56K CSU/DSU (Hydroelectric); 1 2007 Chevy Silverado 3500
with crane (Geothermal); and 1 2005 Ford F350 Supercab with crane (Geothermal).
Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct fiscal impact on the Agency.

Redding abstained.

15. Resolution 20-23, Approve Amendments to NCPA’s Investment Policy and Guidelines
Policy 200-100 — adopt resolution by all members approving the changes to the NCPA
Investment Policy No. 200-100 as follows: 1) updates to the Permitted Investments
attachment; and 2) updated note on Credit Ratings Comparison.

Fiscal Impact. Staff believes with the proposed amendments to the Investment Policy,
there is the potential of adding approximately $200,000 additional interest income and
member savings through a reduction of current liquidity (determining what is adequate and
matched with current cash flow requirements) and implementing a diversified portfolio of
investments.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
February 20, 2020



16. Accept Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2019 - accept and
file by all members the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for the period ending
December 31, 2019.

Fiscal Impact. The total projected savings over the life of the interest rate swaps was $13.9
million at the inception of these agreements. Total projected savings through December 31,
2019, was $6.9 million with actual results at $11.9 million. The difference between expected
savings and actual savings is due to “basis risk”, or the difference between what NCPA pays
on the variable rate bonds and the index rate used in the swap transaction. Total basis risk
to date is positive, resulting in additional savings over those expected of $5 million. Staff
continues to monitor the potential for refinancing these bonds and terminating the swaps,
however, the large mark-to-market payment due to Citibank, N.A. of over $16.8 million (net)
is making a potential refund not a feasible option at this time.

17. Resolution 20-22, Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for
FY2021 - adopt resolution by all members adopting the updates and modifications to the
Nexant Model as proposed by staff in order to allocate budgeted costs to members for
Fiscal Year 2021.

Fiscal Impact. The recommended adjustments will result in a chanzge to all applicable
members’ allocated share of Power Management costs by varying amounts. Table 2 of
Appendix A provides indicative changes in allocated Nexant Power Management costs to
members based on current Fiscal Year 2020 budget after applying updated Calendar Year
2019 determinants to the model in addition to the modifications described in Table 1 as
presented at the February 5, 2020, Facilities Committee meeting.

18. Resolution 20-14, Industrial Door Company - Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for Commercial and Industrial Door Services; Applicable to the following
projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members,
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Industrial Door Company for commercial and
industrial door maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years,
for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by
SCPPA Members. '

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

19. Resolution 20-15, Farwest Insulation Contracting — First Amendment to Five Year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Member — adopt resolution by
all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation
Contracting, with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $3,500,000,
for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by
SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $3,500,000
over the existing five year term through December 6, 2024, to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
February 20, 2020



20.

21.

conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Resolution 20-16, Maxim Crane Works, L.P. — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment
to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Maxim Crane Works, L.P., with any non-
substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
increasing the not to exceed amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed amount to
$1,500,000 over the existing five year term through April 4, 2021. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

Nalco Company, LLC — Ten Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for Specialty
Chemicals and Services; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement
with Nalco Company, LLC for spegtialty chemicals and services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $2,500,000 over five years with options to extend for up to a total of ten years, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,500,000
over five years, with options to extend the agreement for five additional years for a total of
ten years, to be used out of the NCPA approved annual operating budgets. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

22.

Resolution 20-13, Approval of the Services Agreement between Northern California
Power Agency and Nevada Irrigation District — adopt resolution by all members
approving of the Services Agreement between the Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA) and Nevada Irrigation District (NID) (the Service Agreement), pursuant to which
NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and reliability standards compliance services to
NID, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. Staff also recommends that the Commission
authorize NCPA’s General Manager to execute the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA's General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: In consideration for NCPA’s provision of services, NID shall pay NCPA an
amount equal to approximately Thirty Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000.00) for Services
rendered during the first one (1) year period. For each subsequent one (1) year period
during the term of the Agreement, the amount charged to NID will be escalated at a rate of
two percent (2%) per year.

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer gave a presentation and background on the
services agreement with Nevada Irrigation District (NID). The scope of services includes

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
February 20, 2020



23.

24,

scheduling coordination, control center and reliability standards compliance services for
NID’s Deer Creek Powerhouse and Combie South Powerhouse.

Motion: A motion was made by George Morrow and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt
resolution by all members approving of the Services Agreement between the Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) and Nevada Irrigation District (NID) (the Service
Agreement), pursuant to which NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and reliability
standards compliance services to NID, including any non-substantive modifications to the
Services Agreement as may be approved by NCPA’s General Counsel; and authorize
NCPA’s General Manager to execute the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of NCPA,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be approved
by NCPA’s General Counsel. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those
members present. _

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

Resolution 20-18, NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project; Applicable to the
following projects: NCPA Hydroelectric Facility — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project and delegating authority to
the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue
purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and
procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of
$3,000,000, and authorizing use of up to $3,000,000 in existing Hydroelectric Capital
Development Reserve collections to fund the project, and acknowledging that the
Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve will need to be replenished in future budget
years.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project is
anticipated to not exceed $3,000,000. Funds for this project were not included in the
approved FY19-20 Hydroelectric Project Budget. Staff recommends authorizing use of up to
$3,000,000 in existing Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve collections for the
Wildfire Mitigation Project. Additional Capital Development Reserve collections will be
proposed in future Hydro Project budgets to refund the Capital Development Reserve
account (as needed) for the upcoming McKays Sediment Removal project.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma gave an overview of the Hydroelectric Wildfire
Mitigation Plan.

Motion: A motion was made by Jerry Serventi and seconded by Pauline Roccucci to adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the NCPA Hydroelectric Wildfire Mitigation Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total
not to exceed amount of $3,000,000, and authorizing use of up to $3,000,000 in existing
Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve collections to fund the project, and
acknowledging that the Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve will need to be
replenished in future budget years. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of
those members present.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.
Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Resolution 20-19, NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project — adopt resolution
by all members authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Mitigation Project and delegating
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and
to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing Policies and

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
February 20, 2020



25.

Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of
$450,000.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Risk Mitigation Project is
anticipated not to exceed $450,000. Funds for this project were not included in the FY20
budget. Staff recommends using a portion of excess bond Reserve funds that was released
when the final maturity of the 2009 Geothermal bonds was paid on July 1, 2019. The
Reserve fund release was approximately $3.5 million which would have been included as
part of the FY20 annual settlements reconciliation. Therefore, no budget augmentation is
required. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of any agreements
executed for work related to this project will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma gave an overview of the Geothermal Wildfire
Mitigation Plan. In addition, the Commission discussed and asked questions regarding the
outcome of the drone surveys, conducted by the Western-Area Power Administration
(Western), over the facilities transmission lines. Staff also provided an update on the
installation of the new switch that will allow the Geothermal plant to switch lines in case of a
planned or unexpected outage. This installation should help with the resiliency of the
facility.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Pauline Roccucci to adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Wildfire Mitigation Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA
Purchasing Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total
not to exceed amount of $450,000. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of
those members present.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.
Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Amended Resolution 19-50, Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project
Request for Additional Funds; Applicable to the following projects: Lodi Energy
Center - adopt resolution by all members authorizing additional funds for the Lodi Energy
Center Transformer Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project from
$4,000,000 to $4,425,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to
award bids; execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project
amount, authorize the use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and
acknowledging that the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in
future budget years.

Fiscal Impact: The Lodi Energy Center Transformer Replacement Project was considered
and approved in the' FY19-20 budget for $4,000,000.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma gave an update on the budget and explained the
request for additional funds for the transformer replacement.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to adopt
resolution by all members authorizing additional funds for the Lodi Energy Center
Transformer Project, increasing the total not to exceed amount of this project from
$4,000,000 to $4,425,000, delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to
award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the updated project
amount, authorize the use of up to $425,000 from the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund, and
acknowledging that the LEC Maintenance Reserve Fund will need to be replenished in

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

February 20, 2020



26.

27.

future budget years. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members
present.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.
Alameda, Palo Alto and Redding abstained.

Resolution 20-11, Approval of Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with Jane
E. Luckhardt, General Counsel — adopt resolution by all members approving the Third
Amendment to Employment Agreement between NCPA and Jane E. Luckhardt; authorize
the Chair of Commission to execute the Third Amendment to Employment Agreement; and
approve the General Counsel’'s Performance Goals for 2020.

Fiscal Impact: Funds are available in the Executive Services — Legal Salaries and Benefits
account; there is no material change to the current fiscal year budget.

Chair Frith reported that the Executive Committee met several times over the past few
months and successfully negotiated the Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with
Jane Luckhardt. The Executive Committee recommended Commission approval of the Third
Amendment to the Employment Agreement, a five (5%) percent salary increase effective
December 22, 2019, reallocate the General Counsel Job Classification grade from 31 to 32;
and the General Counsel’s Performance Goals for 2020.

Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks provided a brief overview of pay relative to the
market study on the General Counsel position that was conducted. The study assisted the
Committee in negotiating the merit increase and job classification reallocation
recommendation in the Third Amendment to the Employthent Agreement. The Commission
discussed and approved the Executive Committee’s recommendations.

Motion: A motion was made by Mel Grandi and seconded by Jerry Serventi to adopt
resolution by all members approving the Third Amendment to Employment Agreement
between NCPA and Jane E. Luckhardt, which provides a five (5%) percent salary increase
effective on December 22, 2019; authorize the Chair of Commission to execute the Third
Amendment to Employment Agreement; reallocate the General Counsel Job Classification
to salary grade 32; and approve the General Counsel's Performance Goals for 2020.

The motion carried by a majority on a rofl call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent

Resolution 20-21, Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project — adopt resolution by
all members authorizing expenditure of approximately $46,000,000 (forty-six million dollars)
for the Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project, delegating authority to the General
Manager or his designee to award contracts, award bids, execute agreements, and issue
purchase orders for this project to bring the Lodi Energy Center back into operation after the
gas turbine failure on January 16, 2020.

Fiscal Impact: - Preliminary discussions with insurance providers indicate a substantial
portion of this cost will be covered by insurance.

General Manager Randy Howard provided a background on the failure at the Lodi Energy
Center (LEC). The LEC Project Participants Committee (PPC) met yesterday under a
Special Notice to discuss and approve the funding of the parts to ensure the unit is
operational before the summer season. A copy of Staff Report 130:20 was provided to the
Commission.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma provided a more detailed description of the failure
and reported on the investigation. The initial report indicates that the seal on the rotor was
the cause of the unit failure. The Agenda noticed that staff was seeking Commission

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 8
February 20, 2020



approval of approximately $46,000,000, but after further discussions with Siemens and the
LEC PPC, the amount was increased to $50,000,000. The Commission discussed the cost
and how the dollars will be allocated in the budget, as well as available contingency funds.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to adopt
resolution by all members approving for the Lodi Energy Center Turbine Restoration Project
Option #3 (New F4 Machine) in an amount of $50,000,000; and authorize the General
Manager to exe4cute agreements, including revision to the Long Term Maintenance
Agreement and issue Purchase Orders to carry out that work. Funding will come from
insurance coverage ($50,000,000) and the LEC Maintenance Reserve Account ($800,000).
The Maintenance Reserve will be replenished over future budget years, beginning in FY 21.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent
Alameda, Palo Alto, Redding, and Shasta Lake abstained.

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for Closed Session discussion.

Only the appointed Commissioner and Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks participated in
the discussion on Closed Session item 30.

CLOSED SESSION

28.

29.

30.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — Existing litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of
Redding, City of Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal
Claims No. 14-817C. -

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and
Electric Company, Debtors; United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California,
Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead Case) and 19-30089 DM.

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - a)
Labor negotiations pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6: Agency representatives:
NCPA Executive Committee Members and Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks:
Unrepresented Public Employee: General Counsel; and b) Performance evaluation pursuant
to Government Code Section 54957: Unrepresented Public Employee: One Category:
General Counsel.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

February 20, 2020



REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable
action taken in Closed Session.

NEW BUSINESS

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer mentioned that NCPA is releasing a Rolling
Renewable RFP on behalf of the Members, which should help with Members future renewable
needs.

ADJOURNMENT

The February 20, 2020, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:28 am.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2020

10



A/ NCPA CONSENT CALENDAR

/NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: February 20, 2020

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: #r_D to #g\ 9-'\
Consent Itemsﬁxoved from the Agenda and Approved Separately:
#

ROLL-CALL VO>EZB/Y MEMBERS: @Q\\,@D\

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda k|

BART Y.

Biggs N
Gridley ‘

Healdsburg ~
Lodi '

Lompoc +
Palo Alto '

Port of Oakland

Redding \‘-’\ ‘.l/\

Roseville [

Santa Clara b 4

Shasta Lake A\ N

Truckee Donner '

¥

Ukiah ~¥

{

Plumas-Sierra

/C \?@’V
ATTEST:

Cary

A55|st nt S e Commission




Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting
February 20, 2020
COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA @/g% W
7/
2 - BIGGS e a7
3 - GRIDLEY

4 - HEALDSBURG

R
Rz

) Fpald Chan s

5-LODI
6 - LOMPOC y{\ \
7 - PALO ALTO

%’RW

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

10 - REDDING

Do St

11 - ROSEVILLE

=
@W 76@6/4/@("4’1

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

13 - SANTA CLARA

14 - SHASTA LAKE

e T

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH

N

/) y




Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting
February 20, 2020
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Doan Sedns Red g
Jaung L citherrd NCEA
T‘_”:'u,q C/Lowt,fr«; HEnLnSBULG
‘);/'405 /Qééa /< C/?éé /ﬂ A&é
g&g? (W cfho\ ke Uouga
Michalle.  DoAc)ins Rosey e
Po S&ﬂﬁmﬂ/ @caﬂ
ri
)y v (hawle Plameds
Tor Ziman e — Mepk
2_/04,‘.5 g;wu ER s /\.‘éwkm _Ezmn:zoﬂ S)fgq—,aqu
J:J Lf&a&wf _ /&/(/70,4
C )m H( *\(;an%/ NAA—
osn Fpachelsn Polo AVKO
}rg-g Se\ney s GEH N Lc;oif
Qenda 2. Nowved NCOR
%"75’2}&1%\\; % “?C} <
PAVL Bckeny GRD L&y

L@JK\J\@(‘ R&R\‘H

AV




SUPPORT SERVICES PROGRAM STATUS REPORT

PUD

General Manager, General Counsel & Board

March 19, 2020

Member Name Designated Representatives Confirmation | Date

NTE Amount | Approved
Alameda - AMP General Manager & AMP General Counsel S 75,000 06/08/16
BART
Biggs Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 08/09/16
Gridley
Healdsburg City Manager & City Attorney $ 50,000 05/06/19
Lodi Utility Director & City Attorney NTE $15,000; $ 20,000 09/07/16

City Manager & City Attorney NTE $20,000

Lompoc Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 11/15/16
Palo Alto City Manager & City Attorney $ 85,000 06/05/17
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland Executive Director & Deputy Port Attorney $ 150,000 04/14/16
Redding Utility Director & City Attorney $ 125,000 04/19/16
Roseville Electric Utility Director & City Attorney S 50,000 10/05/15
Santa Clara City Manager & City Attorney $ 150,000 05/24/16
Shasta Lake City Manager & General Counsel $ 75,000 07/02/19
Truckee Donner General Manager & General Counsel NTE $15,000; | $ 250,000 11/02/16

Power

President NTE $250,000
Ukiah
SSPA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED/WORK IN PROGRESS
No. Member Name Date Amount NTE | Vendor Name & Short Description
0159 | Alameda Municipal | 3/18/20 | $23,670.00 Navigant Consulting, Inc.; Independent

review and assessment services for AMP’s
Wildfire Mitigation Plan.

3/19/2020 las

5



No.

Member Name

Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

0156

City of Santa Clara

1/23/20

$16,979.40

Montrose Air Quality Services, LLC; RATA
testing on two combined-cycle gas turbine
units at DVR as part of new CEMS
requirements.

0154

Port of Oakland

1/31/20

$ 25,945.00

Navigant Consulting, Inc.; Independent
evaluation services for Wildfire Mitigation
Plan.

0152

City of Santa Clara

1/22/20

$96,510.00

Aspen Environmental; consulting services re
meter data analysis and related work as
requested by SVP

0151

City of Healdsburg

2/1/20

$ 50,000.00

IEC Corporation; services related to the
development of a power purchase.
agreement and review/consulting on the
proposed design and materials for a floating
solar project.

0148

City of Santa Clara

11/1/19

$149,01500

Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.; support
for regulatory and/or contractual issues and
analysis related to CAISO, CRRs, PG&E
transmission system analysis support, NERC
and WECC compliance standards, and other
support as requested.

0143

Truckee Donner
PUD

10/25/19

$ 30,850.00

Navigant Consulting Inc.; Independent
review and assessment of Wildfire
Mitigation Plan and related services.

0139

City of Santa Clara

2/19/20

$3,944.90

Nor-Cal Battery Company; Maintenance of
plant battery chargers at DVR facility.

0138

City of Santa Clara

10/04/19

$49,074.00

Summit Crane; provide operated crane to
support rotor removal and reinstallation at
Gianera facilty.

0137

City of Healdsburg

10/24/19

$ 35,350.00

Navigant Consulting Inc.; Independent
assessment of Healdsburg’s Wildfire
Mitigation Plan.

0136

City of Healdsburg

10/1/19

$ 15,000.00

NCPA,; provide graphic design services on an
as-needed basis.

0135

City of Palo Alto

9/25/19

$ 25,765.00

Navigant Consulting, Inc.; provide
independent evaluation services for
Wildfire Mitigation Plan.

0133

City of Santa Clara

12/23/19

$47,195.00

Fossil Energy Research Corp; review NOx
monitor system and data to assist with
values and recommendations for
correction; AlG tuning and other services as
requested.

3/19/2020 las




No.

Member Name

Date

Amount NTE

Vendor Name & Short Description

0129

City of Lodi

10/1/19

$31,345.80

Navigant Consulting, Inc.; provide
independent evaluation services for
Wildfire Mitigation Plan.

0128

City of Roseville

9/12/19

$20,691.80

Dudek; provide independent evaluation
services for Wildfire Mitigation Plan.

0122

City of Roseville

7/19/19

$ 49,000.00

Energy & Resource Solutions; provide
energy efficiency program services,
program measurement and verification,
evaluation and engineering services.

0121

City of Santa Clara

7/31/19

$ 8,181.20

Northwest Industrial Engine & Compressor
Co.; Perform Level 2 PM on one Superior
MH6 fuel gas compressor during November
planned outage at DVR facility.

0117

City of Lodi

8/22/19

$236,740.00

Burns & McDonnell; engineering design and
environmental analysis for the PG&E
Northern San Joaquin 230 kV Transmission
Project to be incorporated into PG&E’s PEA.

0114

City of Santa Clara

7/1/19

$ 65,180.00

Cadmus Group, LLC; provide consulting
services to conduct evaluation for SVP’s
Small Business Exterior Lighting Program.

0112

Port of Oakland

4/26/19

$29,785.00

Black & Veatch; preparation of an
Interconnection Impact Study (grid impact
study) for a 1-5 MW distributed solar
system.

0110

City of Santa Clara

6/20/19

$48,775.00

Cameron-Cole LLC; annual CARB
greenhouse gas emissions and mandatory
compliance reporting of greenhouse gas
emissions; years 2018-2020.

0108

City of Santa Clara

5/29/19

$17,046.70

Black & Veatch; Engineering services and
development of procurement specifications
for replacement of approx. 520-gallon
underground waste oil drain tank — Gianera.

0100

City of Roseville

3/13/19

$47,660.00

Cadmus Group LLC; provide EM&YV services
for REU’s home energy reports and submit
report containing project research
objectives, data collection, analysis,
methods, findings, conclusions, and
recommendations.

3/19/2020 las




SSA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED AND IN PROGRESS (SCPPA CONTRACTS)

No.

NCPA or SCPPA
Member

Date

Amount

Vendor Name & Short Description

0149

City of Lodi

3/18/20

$53,325.00

Efficiency Services Group, LLO; provide
“Keep Your Cool” Commercial Refrigeration
Program through FY21.

0144

City of Santa Clara

12/3/19

$814,813.97

Efficiency Services Group, LLC; provide
“Keep Your Cool” Commercial Refrigeration
Program during FY20 and FY21.

0126

City of Lompoc

10/24/19

$125,000.00

Efficiency Services Group, LLC; provide
“Keep Your Cool” Commercial Refrigeration
Program during FY20.

0123

City of Roseville

8/15/19

$ 48,005.00

RKS Research & Consulting; conduct CMUA
2019 Statewide Survey of Business & Key
Account Customers and additional
oversampling to measure and track
effectiveness of energy efficiency and
renewable energy programs offered.

0116

City of Redding

7/31/19

$125,000.00

Alternative Energy Systems Consulting;
continued energy efficiency engineering
support services in FY20.

0113

City of Roseville

8/9/19

$390,572.26

Oracle America; delivery of Opower
Customer Behavioral Energy Efficiency
Program in FY20, including quarterly print
Home Energy Reports, monthly emails, and
High Bill Alerts.

3/19/2020 las




F A FURLL ASEWLY

/ HORTHERN CALSFORNIA POVER ATERCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.: D

Date: March 26, 2020
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: March 4, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone  (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693

NORTHERM CALSFORNIA POWER RGEKCY web www.ncpa.com

Minutes — Draft

Date: March 10, 2020

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: March 4, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Vice Chair
Basil Wong at 9:04 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference and/or
on-line presentation were Alan Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert,
(Gridley), Shiva Swaminathan and Poorvi Rao (Palo Alto), Nick Rossow (Redding), and Monica
Nguyen and Steve Hance (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are listed on the attached
Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra,
Port of Oakland, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM

No

public comment.

OPEN SESSION

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

2,

Approve Minutes from the February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting, and the
February 12, 2020 Special Facilities Committee Meeting.

Motion: A motion was made by Bill Forsythe and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
approval of the February 5, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting, and the February 12, 2020
Special Facilities Committee Meeting. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Integrity Inspections, LLC MTGSA
— Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Integrity Inspections, LLC
for specialty mechanical and inspection services, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

This is a new agreement with a new vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of
funds. NCPA desires to enter into an agreement with this new vendor so established terms and
conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Adding

this vendor will increase the pool of qualified vendors for these types of services. Agreements in



place for similar services include Premium Inspection Company and Team Industrial. A draft
Commission Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to
place this item on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Bill Forsythe recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Integrity Inspections, LLC for specialty mechanical and
inspection related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo
Alto, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Redding. The motion passed.

4. All Generation Services Facilities — Hunt & Sons, Inc. MTEMS - Staff presented background
information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-
Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials, and Supplies with Hunt & Sons, Inc. for
purchase and delivery of diesel fuel, propane, and other oils and lubricants, with a not to exceed
amount of $500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. All purchase
orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

This is a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no
commitment of funds. NCPA had a previous agreement in place with Hunt & Sons, Inc., which is
running low on funds and expiring. Staff has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good
working relationship with the vendor. Other agreements in place for similar purchases are with
George Lowry, Inc., Redwood Coast Fuels, Southern Counties Lubricants, LLC, Valley Pacific
Petroleum Service, Inc. and Westgate Petroleum. This agreement will be for use at NCPA
facilities only, since it involves purchasing of chemicals. A draft Commission Staff Report and
draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the consent
calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Bill Forsythe and seconded by Basil Wong recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Hunt & Sons, Inc. for
the purchase of diesel fuels, propane, unleaded fuels, oils and lubricants, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. A
vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville,
and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Redding. The motion passed.

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Coffman Engineers, Inc. MTPSA -
Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman Engineers,
Inc. for fire protection, mechanical, electrical, and civil engineering services, with a not to
exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

This is.a new agreement with a new vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of
funds. Geothermal staff contacted Coffman Engineers, Inc. because they offer California
Registered Fire Protection Engineer (FPE) services. Fire preparation/wildfire mitigation is a high
priority for NCPA facilities. After having met with this vendor, staff recommends that NCPA enter
into an enabling agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc., so established terms and conditions
are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. Execution of this
enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified vendors willing to work in the more
remote location of NCPA’s Geothermal facility, which will result in more competitive bidding

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
March 4, 2020



when services are needed. Other agreements in place for similar services are with Sabah
International, Inc., and ORR Protection Systems, Inc. (pending approval). A draft Commission
Staff Report and draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item
on the consent calendar.

Motion: A motion was made by Bill Forsythe and seconded by Tikan Singh recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc. for fire protection,
mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000
over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley,
Lodi, Lompoc, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto, and Redding. The motion
passed.

6. Proposed FY2021 Annual Budget Review and Approval — Staff presented, and reviewed the
final budget for FY2021, and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the
budget.

Staff from Generation Services, Administrative Services, and Power Management reviewed the
initial budget at a Special Facilities Committee meeting February 12, 2020. Challenges for the
upcoming FY2021 budget include forward market prices down from FY2020, hardening of the
insurance market, wheeling access charges with low voltage costs up but the high voltage costs
down very little, and the Western forecast with increased costs but a lower forward curve. Other
challenges include capital and maintenance projects, funding reserves for future projects, and
MOU increases. The strategic goals for the Agency include expansion of customers and
projects, and transitioning from a low to medium impact entity to support more customers and
projects. With the addition of more customers and revenue, staff propose adding positions to the
Information Services (IS) Department and Power Management (PM). Each Business Unit has
decreased the FY2021 budget since the review at the special meeting.

Generation Services

Hydro has reduced O&M costs, and reduced the Capital Development Reserve funding for a
total reduction of 2 million since February. The total net cost to participants is now increasing by
1.8 million. Geo has reduced funding for projects and Maintenance Reserve for a total reduction
of 1.7 million. Net cost to participants is increasing 3.9 million. Revenues are forecasted to be
lower for FY2021. CT1 has a net increase to participants of 1.7 million. CT2 has a decrease of
1.2 million to the participants. Including both CTs the FY2021 budget is relatively flat with an
increase of approximately $500,000.

Power Management

The Power Management FY2021 budget has been decreased by $543,091 since the February
12, 2020 Special Facilities Committee meeting. The net cost to participants is now an increase
of $750,712 for a total proposed FY2021 budget of $11,281,224.

Administrative Services

The Administrative Services FY2021 budget has been decreased by $537,751 since the
February 12, 2020 Special Facilities Committee meeting. The net cost to participants is now an
increase of $998,055 for a total proposed FY2021 budget of $16,322,208.

The next steps for the FY2021 proposed budget are for Utility Director review in March,
Commission review in March, final budget adjustments and allocations with Commission
approval April 16, 2020. The FY2021 proposed budget is available for review on NCPA
Connect.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
March 4, 2020



Motion: A motion was made by Shiva Swaminathan and seconded by Bill Forsythe recommending
Commission approval of the FY2021 budget as presented in the Facilities Committee Meeting
March 4, 2020, for Generation Services, Administrative Services, and Power Management,
subject to the consideration and support of the Member Utility Directors, with any non-substantive
changes approved by NCPAs General Counsel. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

7. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — Plant Staff provided the Committee with an
informational update on current plant activities and conditions.

Hydro — February 2020 had very little to no precipitation, which brought the percentages down
to only 43% of normal by March, 2. Hydro staff are considering moving the Spicer annual
outage forward. The USGS annul audit has been completed, as well as the 2020 FERC Part 12
Reports. Bids are due March 4, 2020, for the 230 kV Insulator Replacement Project. Seven
companies were at the pre-bid meeting, and two addendums have been issued.

CTs — The February operations were quiet for CT1 with four actual starts, in real time, out of 16
that were forecasted. The FYTD is 213. CT2 had 0 starts with 4 forecasted. The FYTD is 36.
One forced outage occurred when Unit 2 tripped both units due to a vibration wire failure. There
was one planned outage in Alameda for the Generator Circuit Breaker Project, a generator
major, and routine maintenance.

Geo — There were no safety incidents to report at Geo for the month of February. CPR and AED
training was conducted, and vegetation management continues. Plant 1 was online for most of
February averaging 75.8 MW net. Plant 2 was back online March 2 and is currently generating
100 MW net. The FY 2020 net generation is 403 GWh of 493.2 GWh forecasted, which is 18.3%
below forecast. Ongoing maintenance activities include generator testing, insulation repairs,
steam field wireline work, and cooling tower repairs. The temporary jumpers were removed from
the Fulton and Lakeville lines. A switch has been installed to allow for future Fulton/Lakeville
transmission inter-ties.

8. New Business Opportunities — Staff provided an update regarding new business opportunities.

NCPA submitted a Statement of Qualifications on February 11, 2020, to Sonoma Clean Power
(SCP). Services requested include scheduling coordinator services. SCP is a well-established,
operational CCA that began services in May 2014. NCPA participated in an interview with SCP
on February 25, 2020. Interviews will be conducted through the 2nd week of March. NCPA also
submitted a Statement of Qualification on February 13, 2020, to Butte Choice Energy (BCE).
Staff are waiting to hear back from both entities. Updates will be provided to the Committee as
needed.

NCPA and Nevada Irrigation District (NID) have an approved Services Agreement. Staff are
now working on resource integration. Services are scheduled to start for the Combie South
Powerhouse May 1, 2020. The Deer Creek Powerhouse is still pending integration due to FERC
action. Agreement negotiations with South Feather Power and Water Agency (SFWPA) are
pending due to ongoing discussions between SFWPA and PG&E. New resource integration for
East Bay Community Energy (EBCE) is scheduled in quarter four. EBCE has a new wind project
which is inclusive in the agreement.

9. Planning and Operations Update —
- Rolling Renewable RFP — Staff are developing a “rolling” renewable RFP on behalf of the

Members, to include offers for Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS), carbon free
resources, and energy storage. Staff will present the RFP documents at the Utility

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
March 4, 2020



Directors (UD) Retreat for review and discussions. A RFP dashboard will be created on
NCPA Connect for Members use. Staff are seeking feedback regarding data processing.

- Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Planning and Business Resiliency — NCPA is
planning for impact on the local community. Focus will be on the use of the Disaster
Recovery Center (DRC) for business continuity as a “Quarantined Zone” for essential
operations. Most business functions can be performed remotely via VPN access points.

- Software Enhancements — Upgrades and enhancements are being done to the Risk
Management and reporting tools, which will be available on NCPA Connect. The Cost
VaR Report is undergoing a dynamic upgrade, changing it from a static report.

- PPA Counterparties — Staff is working to increase the number of approved counterparties
for PPAs.

10. Next Meeting — The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for April 1, 2020.
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 11:10 am by the Committee Vice Chair.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2020



Northern California Power Agency
March 4, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI I J //f(%g@y% |
E— C )

LOMPOC ‘ (VY

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

PORT OF OAKLAND

REDDING

SANTA CLARA Zasi\ (W) OV)Vﬂ
y,




Northern California Power Agency
March 4, 2020 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Canrve Yollo LCvA
£n o6k M PR
a\/t pqmam Vel A
Mike  DelBorl, NCpPa
JE JE ety Lawwsow NCPA
Thne L CEHAEZ DT KNPk
e,/ /2 ejﬁ?m& NCP’?
F}/I —I%‘”SV#L Rosevs/le
Sk Wity NC/ A
Ho/\faba_ honobadl: N hh
Wowin Naukes NCPA-
[ ek N
Ianq 2 enmer— NP A
D?M m 5 F?M?ﬁ[f /e /‘4
Sppelit. Aipsmuooriie VLOATA




A PUBLIY ARENLY

“"NCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

March 17, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  March 26, 2020

SUBJECT:

February 29, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division;

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth (L’Q,LMETHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc

Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o
o o o o O o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o O

SR: 131:20



February 29, 2020 Financial Report (Unaudited)
March 17, 2020

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the March 26, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman'’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited February 29, 2020 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

[

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 131:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of February 2020

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,911,090
3,057,615
194,015
145,954
5,417,096
37,300,150

$ 48,025,920




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020 67%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESQURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,631,891 $ 12,631,076 $ 20,767,239 61%

Debt Service (Net) 2,775,572 22,204,574 33,306,862 67%
Annual Budget Cost 4,407,463 34,835,650 54,074,101 64%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,837,807 20,607,924 30,365,288 68%

Debt Service (Net) 412,144 3,297,149 4,945,723 67%
Annual Budget Cost 3,249,951 23,905,073 35,311,011 68%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 488,636 3,891,098 6,169,530 63%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 56,921 756,160 1,089,118 69%

Other Plant Cost 151,269 1,561,380 2,552,870 61%

Debt Service (Net) 483,035 3,864,281 5,796,421 67%
Annual Budget Cost 691,225 6,181,821 9,438,409 65%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 136,564 20,391,339 39,513,147 52%

Other Plant Cost 2,005,307 156,848,311 27,392,586 58%

Debt Service (Net) 2,171,202 17,369,619 26,054,428 67%
Annual Budget Cost 4,313,073 53,609,269 92,960,161 58%
Member Resources - Energy 4,114,792 41,179,413 56,228,967 73% (a)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 447,176 3,149,748 3,540,898 89% (b)
Western Resources 925,693 13,119,137 23,325,119 56%
Market Power Purchases 1,634,298 15,977,260 16,123,482 106%  (c)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 55,365,128 419,581,908 256,029,593 164%  (d)
Net GHG Obligations 1,056,280 2,555,874 496,955 514% (e)

76,693,715 617,986,252 552,698,226 1M12%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 550,625 4,781,334 2,813,086 170% 4]
Wheeling Access Charge 8,666,372 72,472,381 110,581,940 66%
Ancillary Services 853,556 5,070,004 2,372,540 214% ()
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (736,039) 12,606,348 1,321,289 954%  (h)
9,334,514 94,930,067 117,088,855 81%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 186,810 1,310,952 2,132,130 61%
Regulatory Representation 62,561 434,991 748,387 58%
Western Representation 63,252 398,303 745117 53%
Customer Programs 52,663 180,652 423,678 43%
Judicial Action 99,790 369,540 625,000 59%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 561,751 4,020,752 6,082,417 66%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 230,122 1,638,287 2,934,143 56%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 37,452 244,452 414,479 59%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 93,672 620,614 953,716 65%
Gas Purchase Program 5,883 42,769 77,386 55%
Market Purchase Project 9,805 59,446 111,270 53%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 29, 2020 67%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management 77,224 107,129 211,744 51%
Settlements 77,080 522,604 979,916 53%
Integrated Systems Support 11,413 38,627 243,161 16%
Participant Pass Through Costs 8,448 783,080 1,560,447 50%
Support Services 135,760 1,018,832 - N/A
1,713,686 11,791,030 18,242,991 65%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 87,741,915 724,707,349 688,030,072 105%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 2,116,004 61,524,120 127,628,712 48%
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 1,411,338 19,528,206 29,156,411 67%
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 3,645,825 46,606,130 67,107,648 69%
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,017,797 12,630,153 15,623,339 80% 0]
Waestern Resource Energy Sales 731,794 14,076,231 18,304,471 77% ()
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 35,463,534 238,595,125 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 16,682 4,498,994 4,196,879 107% (k)
Transmission Sales - 64,386 110,376 58%
Western Credits, interest and Other Income 8,412,954 62,456,772 19,227,470 325% 0]
52,815,928 459,880,117 281,350,306 163%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 34,925987 $ 264,827,232 $ 406,679,766 65%

(a) Variance caused by greater than anticipated member contracts for Palo Alto and Port of Oakland.
(b) Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Lodi, Lompoc, Gridley, Biggs, Healdsburg, and Ukiah.

(c) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget including certain
NextEra and Exelon deals.

(d) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(e) Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for City of Lodi, BART, San Jose CE, East Bay CE,
and Ukiah.

(f) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
() Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(h) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(i) Variance due to unbudgeted revenue from market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget include
certain NextEra and Exelon deals.

() Increase due to greater than anticipated price per MWh. MWhs are 100% of budget at 2/29/20.
(k) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation.

() Variance caused by unbudgeted revenue from customers and greater than anticipated member contract sales.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Special deposits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

February 29,

2020 2019

(in thousands)

16,123  § 32,786
61,211 45,941
3,098 -
2,447 432
554 349
8,891 9,746
2,532 2,305
94,856 91,559
44,284 39,166
177,089 184,745
647 541
222,020 224,452
1,508,124 1,505,580
(1,024,637) (993,823)
483,487 511,757
182 182
483,669 511,939
219,685 228,559
101 56
685 214
265 265
1,021,281 1,057,044
26,675 35,558
17,055 19,200
62,030 62,204
105,760 116,962

1,127,041 § 1,174,006




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
February 29,
2020 2019
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 39,594 $ 26,525
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 10
Member advances 1,647 1,229
Operating reserves 19,366 23,903
Current portion of long-term debt 57,810 41,275
Accrued interest payable 7,239 6,447
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 125,666 99,389
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 66,126 76,002
Operating reserves and other deposits 135,353 128,916
Interest rate swap liability 15,747 13,326
Asset Retirement Obligations 66,137 63,713
Long-term debt, net 596,472 663,147
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 879,835 945,104
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,005,501 1,044,493
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 82,416 85,450
Pension and OPEB deferrals 5,802 3,195
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 88,218 88,645
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (47,801) (57,307)
Restricted 45,554 64,209
Unrestricted 35,569 33,966
TOTAL NET POSITION 33,322 40,868

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,127,041 § 1,174,006




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Eight Months Ended February 29,

2020 2019

(in thousands)

266,662 $ 306,555
150,479 194,560
417,141 501,115
157,517 225,802
54,931 76,424
126,854 118,507
20,660 20,598
17,921 14,724
14,609 13,443
392,492 469,498
24,649 31,617
(24,857) (27,283)
2,887 6,650
4,241 5,374
(17,729) (15,259)
(4,009) (2,574)
(7,965) (10,984)
(5,054) 2,800
38,376 38,068
33,322 $ 40,868




1¥0'L2T'1 §  TTIS91 § 6¥8L T0F'6S § IvI'90v 977§ 919'sT §  T8EVTE § €OE'EEl
09L°501 $SO°LL - 2 - V6Lt - 0zI'l S€6'T 95879
0€0°Z9 - = ) 0 181 - [ 5 06919
SSO'LL SSO'LI - - - g - = *
$L99T - - + » £19°1 = 196 SE6TT 991°L
187°120°1 L£950°8p1 6v8°L 20165 " LYE YO 9zz’s 96'+T Ly 10€ L¥YOL
$92 $9T - - - 2 Z - - =

<89 - 89 = = - - = - -

101 = 101 - = > - = -
$89°61T PILLS - A - £6¥°ST = L19L [§VAAS (0s8'1)
699°€8Y €25T €€ - - SOL'BIE 1261 608T1 9LT'LII TS10€E
81 - - E - 781 - - B -
L8Y'E8Y [x4%4 £2¢ - = £85°81€ 1261 608'T1 9LILTT TS10E
(LE9VTOT) (L£97e) (1Ls) # (ogL°L) (sz6'so1) (908%¢) (ev0T8) (1L6°LLT) (8v6°11S)
YT1'808°1 0919 ¥68 9ELL 80$vZY LTL'9E 758'%9 LY1'G6E 001°TLS
020°ZZC 781°08 3 $92°0€ - S67'9€ - L9¢ 81591 ¥61°87
L¥9 9l€E - - - 101 = - L6 €El
680°LLL £51°95 LTIYT = $86°TE - 214 L68'9€ vLS'9T
¥8Z'vh €IL'€T ¥ LE9'S - 608°¢ - yit ¥Z5'6 1841
95876 £8€°L orL9 8E1°6T - p65°€T S0E°E €0L'E oL 156°€1
= (gzs'sL) €199 86L°8T E 899°0C 6v8°T 06€°€ 0597 S6v°8
[4354 (o1 14 - 819 96 99 818 96
168°8 - - - £02T°C 65€ 9T $LS1 605
¥sS 69€ 1 81 - - - - - -

Lvy'T 16T°T - 981 - s - - e} -

860°C 860°¢ - . - - - - = <
LT 11219 - - . = - = G -
£21°91 §  €56'ST $ E - § <ol 1 [ $ $ 1

ﬁo:BEOU AJUIBY $IVIAIG :OmmmmEmE,H AU ON 121UQ)) ARIauy Elile] ON sANI0R,] ofuuu—uc‘.v.,m —.mFCo_—.—Ooo
._050 Joquiajy 7 Iamod EO_mmmEmcE.H _vo‘.— ife} iw_nnU
Pa1RIOSSY paseyaing O—Qw_zz
SAIUNOSTE NOISSIASNV YL % ONILVYINID
0707 ‘67 A1eniqay

UONRUIGIOD Ut POTRUIYE 4

SAYNOSHY 20 SMOTLLNO ATNIFLIA ANV SLASSY TVIOL

SANNOSTA 40 SMOTILNO ATNIFIFA TVIOL
suonesiqQ uSWAMY 19S5y
S[eLIRJPp HHAO PUE S[ELIRJOP UOISUI
1qap Jo Sulpunjal uo JSOd SSXF
SHOANOSTY 40 SMOTALNO ATNIFIHA

SI9SSV TV.LIOL

Auedwod paIRIDOSSE Ul JUALISIAUL
51509 uOIIBINISAAUL pue Aoans Arpunuraid
sysodap [eradg
syasse K1ojenSey
SLASSY ¥HHLO

INVTd ORILOF T TVLIOL
ssa1801d-U-yIom BOROTIISUOD)

uoneioaidap pate[nundde ssa7Y
2914105 Ut Jueld 903y
LNV1d ORLOaTd

SLASSY QILOTALSTI TYLOL
3[qeA12031 151U
SUAWISIAUL
sjuajeamba yseos pue yse)
SLASSV qALONILSHY

SLASSV INTHIND TVLIOL
wswraSoxd 1oyjo pue Asusdy woy ang
sasuadxa predarg
sanddns pue Kiopaaug
9]qEAI303] 1S21aJU]

Eate)

sjuedionreg
9[qeAI9031 STUNO20Y
SIUQUIISAAUY
sjuo[eainba yseo pue yse)

SLASSY LNTIND

SLASSY

(pantwio 5,000)
SNOILVIOJHOD ¥IMOd AALLVIDOSSV ANV
AJNIOV YAMOd VINJOAI'TVO NUIHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INFWHLV.LS ONINIFINOD

NOILLVINYOANI TVIONVNIA YHHLO



W0LTI1 § TTlsol 6v8°L § Top6s $  1rI90r § oTT's 919°5T TBEVTE § EOEEEl
TLEEE STE'E T9L°¢ (865°S) 905°91 (L08) 1+$ 97T’s Lzeol
695°S€ 81€°€ T9L°C [(37A4] 689°S1 (o8) 66L°T W'y 10€6
243534 L - (£28°7) 0191z - (r6) 799°€T Tov'E
(108°LY) - - - (g6L'07) s (r981) (8L9'72) (95t'7)
817'88 £8'8 £7€ E £€7'8¢€ £60'T 718 £95'E LYETE
708°s 708'S - - - = - - =
91¥°Z8 170°€ [x43 - ££T8€ €60 [4¢] L9§°E LYEPE
10§°500°1 ¥S6°ZS1 YOLE 09679 T0¥1S€E 3 £97%T 685°S1€E 67988
S€8°6L8 £0£°9p1 806C 1LT°EE 0Tr0zE . STr'T 580162 £71°€8
TLY'96S - - 6v0°61€ - 99Z°C 759657 $0S°SL
LEL'99 - - - 181 - 651 z L6L'S9
LYL'ST - - - - - - LYL'ST -
£SE'SEL LLT'08 806'T 1LT'eE 0611 b 989°ST 1Z1'e
92199 9T1'99 - - . - - - :
999°671 159°9 958 639°1€ 786°0€ 0r6'E 8€8°IC [ 90T°S
6ET'L - - L8Y'E i 09L S€6'T LS
018°LS - - 2 0r0°zL - 0s¥°0T STL'0T S65
9961 - - - ySH'SI {3 LT9 6T (L6€)
1¥9°1 - 958 = - n - : 6L
o1 - - 2 - - ot =
$65°6€ $ 159' - $ 689'1¢ $ 1 $ LOS I $8¢ $ 091
pauiquo) KousFy EERITNEN UOISSISURI] UOISSTWUSURL], 191U AdsAUY EERTEEE] 2U3DBOIPAT] [eWIdY103Ly
1910 1qQUISI 29 1M0d 1po] rende)
PpateIO0SSY paseyaing apdunpy
SANANOSTA NOISSTASNV AL % ONILVHINAD
0707 ‘6T Arenigay

NOILISOd L3N NV SHOUNOSTH 40
SMOTINI ANHIAd ‘STILITIEVIT TVLOL
NOILISOd LAN TV.LOL
peromIsasun
pajoLnsay
s1osse [endes ul USLLISIAUL JON
NOLLISOd LAN

SHOMNOSHAY 40 SMOTANI AT II3d TVIOL
S[e19Jop GHJQ PUE UOISUOG
snpao Aioje[nday

SEUNOSTY 40 SMOLANI AIIHFAEA
SHLLITIEVITTV.IOL

SHILITIEVIT INTIINI-NON TVLOL
19U 1qep une}-Suog
suoneSqQ BWAINY 1958y
Aupiqe) dems ajer Jsa10IU]
sysodap Joyio pue saalesal SuneradQ
Aunqey gEJO pue uolsuad 10N
SHILITIEVIT INTIINI-NON

SHILITEVIT LNGIND TVLOL

3]qeAed 152191UL PArLDIY
1q0p uue3-3uoj Jo uoruod jusun)
sonrosal SunesadQ
$30UBAPR J2QUID]A
UOIQIUISTOD 1O} PIIOLNSAI - 3[qeArd SUOLUIIAI PUE SIUNOIDY
sesuadxa panuooe pue qeded sjunoddy
SHLLITIEYIT INTEND

SHLLITIEVIT

(pantwo ,000)
SNOLLVYOJY0D YAMOd ALVIDOSSV ANV
ADNAODV 4IMOd VINHOAITVD NITHLION

NOILISOd LIN 40 INHIWILVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILLVINHOANI TVIONVNIA YHHLO



TTEEE § STEE § oLt $ (855°S) § 90591 (208) rs 97T § Lzeol
9LE'BE 866°C €187 8511 10S°L [GIAT] [%44 789°€l ¥56'6
(¥50'S) LTl (150°1) (912°9) 500'6 9%6 811 (95%°8) ELE
(c96°L) v16) (zze'e) (zs6) (spL) 096 (8¢} (o017) [(733]
(600') = - - yIg - ((Z740] (£50°0) (£08°1)
(6zL'LT) 1L 9 £€8 (6£1°9) 81 L0€ €LV E1) (1)
W'y $9T - - 12L'T : 8711 871 [§3]
L838°C b s9 €€8 L99 81 $S 827 79¢
(L58°vT) - - - (Lzs'6) - (928) (Tro'vl) @iv)
6¥9°'vT 0€6 908°C (L65°9) SLO'ST (ze) 9IlI'T 0L1'6 181°C
T6Y'T6E (el 78T°€l SS1°Z8T 888°SY 680 L8OV 9€6'81 611
= - (%) - [234 <01 €5 961 (5]
609°%1 (£L7) ¥59'y - TI0'e 8SL 5L L6£T SIe'e
126°L1 * 8y - 152°€ 956°1 065 L66Y 6L0°L
099°0T 6€T 69 - vSL'G SEl 9Lb1 vLT9 €ILT
58971 = £ pLE'YTT 9021 8 €1 90% lez4
1E6%S - 6158 0s1°e 01z'LT 0L6 6E1°1 £00°€ ov6‘0l
LIS'LST s - LE0'PST £€0T°1 LST %9 6991 £€6¢€
WLy 968 85091 8SS°SLT £96°09 LSO €0T'S 90187 00£'9T
6LY'0ST - L06'1 0TET8 0TL'SE ST8 769 L9v'¥1 8YSY1
799°997 $ 968 ISTp1 $ 8eT'e6l § E£pT'sT TeT'e 115 6£9°¢1 $  TSLI
pauiquo) Aduany EERITNEN 1SS! 1L 1L 191ua)) Adlaug QUQ ON satIoey J11193[30IpAH [BULIYIOD
Feitle] Taquidy ¥ famog 1po] 10 [ended
PajRIDOSSY paseyoing adnny

SHOMNOSTE NOISSINSNV UL % ONILVIINIO

0707 °67 A1En1q91 PIPUT SPUON IYSIY oY) 104

uOREUIQUIOD uf PATEUILIYT

Papua pousd ‘NOLLISOd LAN
1294 30 Juuided ‘NOLLISOd LAN

NOILLISOd LN NI (ESYTI0EQ) FSYIIONI
SINVAIDLLYVd OL SANAATA

SINNONWV HT18VIIAQDTE LN

SHNNAATY (SASNHIXH) ONILVIFIO NON TVIOL
._osuo
JUIODUL 3SAIUY
asuadxa 1saratuy

SANNAATY (SASNAXH) ONILVYEIO NON

SHONIATI ONILVEHLO LAN

SASNEIXH ONILVIEdO TVLOL
1o ‘saseyoind (safes) Auedwooisiuy
[e1ouad pue sagenSIWIPY
UBUIUEIN
uonemaideq
UOISSISUEIL],
suoneadQ
1omod paseyoing

SASNIIXHT ONILVIHdO

SHNNIATY ONLLY¥3dO0 TV.LOL
Auegd-pryy Yo
swedonreg

SANNIATI DNLLVIHdO

(pap1wo 5,000)
SNOLLVHOJHOD YIMOd ALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNAOV 4AMO0d VINIOAI'TVD NIAHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI STONVHD ANV SHSNAIXH ‘STANTATYH JO INTWALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVINJOANI "TVIONVNIA HAHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
February 29, 2020

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount
CURRENT $ 5,367,120
PAST DUE:

1-30 Gridley Feb'20 ARB 178,161 *
31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 5,545,281

* Denotes items paid/applied after February 29, 2020.

AR FY 2020Feb Rpt 2020



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

March 17, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended February 29, 2020

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth == L UMETHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [
. F’a“°i;‘;:i'3?}’r:’:se; 0 City of Palo Alto [  Plumas-SierraREC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [1 City of Roseville [] Truckee DonnerPUD [
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other [

SR: 132:20

[



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended February 29, 2020
March 17, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $11,212,478 of which approximately $116,228 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $3,258,302 to Debt Service and $7,837,948 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA'’s investment portfolio totaled $287,528,527 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $290,523,675.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.060% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.088%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $152,335,000. February maturities totaled $26 million and monthly receipts totaled

$40 million. During the month $16 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 10 basis points (from 1.56%
to 1.46%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 29 basis points (from 1.50% to 1.21%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of February 29, 2020 are
in compliance with NCPA’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 132:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

FEBRUARY 29, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

February 29, 2020
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
2,153,433 104,136,230 106,289,663 35.58%
1,449,575 - 1,449,575 0.50%
4,234,940 904,075 5,139,015 1.72%
3,258,302 31,454,605 34,712,907 11.62%
116,228 151,033,617 151,149,845 50.60%
11,212,478 287,528,527 298,741,005 100.00%
290,523,675




Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
February 29, 2020
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 38,130,382 $ 177,681 $ 16,219,093 $ (17,942,811) $ (8,530,607) $ (27,460,462) $ 593,276
Special Deposits 1,608,356 5 - (23,359,765) - 21,853,189 101,785
Construction - 31,293 2,464,000 - - . 2,495,293
Debt Service - 144 - - (2,192,726) 5,446,392 3,253,810
Special & Reserve - 135,604 7,442,259 (2,354,697)  (5,343,070) 160,881 40,977
$ 39,738,738 § 344,727 $ 26,125,352 $ (43,657,273) $ (16,066,403) $ - $ 6,485,141

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

February 29, 2020
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(1.OSS) INCREASE/
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 8,530,607 $ (16,219,093) $ 12,832 §$ 10,222 §$ - $ (7,665,432)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - (2,464,000) 1,335 - - (2,462,665)
Debt Service 2,192,726 - 36,040 - - 2,228,766
Special & Reserve 5,343,070 (7,442,259) 3,528 22,137 - (2,073,524)
$ 16,066,403 $ (26,125,352) $ 53,735 § 32,359 $ - $ (9,972,855)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (86,094)

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (10,058,949)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

February 29, 2020
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.060% 2.088%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2.071% 2.167%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.284% 2.382%
Capital Facilities 1.218% 1.240%
Hydroelectric 1.894% 1.958%
Lodi Energy Center 1.749% 1.586%
INTEREST RATES
2.00 -
1.75 -73% = -
KEY INTEREST RATES 180 e e
125 f—r————— -—-——«x
PRIOR 1.00 4— L Al ol P
CURRENT YEAR 0.75 +— —— e .
0.50 | D
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.58% 2.40% gzi = —
T-Bills (90da.) 1.46% 2.45% :
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.21% 2.35% Sep Oct ey Dec Jan Feb
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.21% 2.55%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 0.89% 2.37% - —— -
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.09% 2.47% : ~t— T-Bills (90 days) -~ FED FUNDS
ety T-Bills (1 yr) e T-Notes (3 yr)




Type

US Government Agencies
Corporate Bonds (MTN)

US Bank Trust Money Market
Commercial Paper
Investment Trusts (LAIF)
Investment Trusts (CAMP)
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. *
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note
Certificates of Deposit

Total Dollars

Total Percents

Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
February 29, 2020
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 610
Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
- $ - $44,294 $ 6,225 $ 17,210 $ 86,535 $ 2,000 156,264 53.85%
- 1,000 - - 3,000 62,300 - 66,300 22.85%
2,235 - - - - - - 2,235 0.77%
13,534 - - - - - - 13,534 4.67%
33,047 - - - - - - 33,047 11.39%
5,158 - - - - - - 5,158 1.79%
6,982 - - - - - - 6,982 2.41%
- - 821 118 4,202 - - 5,141 1.77%
- 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.52%
60,956 $1,010 $45,115 $6,343 $24,412 $150,335 $2,000 290,171 100.00%
21.00% 0.35% 15.55% 2.19% 8.41% 51.81% 0.69% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully

collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we y1:01 0202/90/€0

£08'005 20992 ZOVMI0P90  00.'LES [Sa £51'L £202/82/70  G9Z'10S 8L0Z/SLISO  00SE 000°00§ 208N 00 UOJIBIN AN 4O Yueg
£29'90§ 87892 €HazrLlee 098'/LS voL'z ogL'L €20Z/LLIP0  0/8'L05 6L0T/LE/L0  0SS°T 000°'00§ 208N “2U] ‘HeuWiEM
50588y 11992 LMEIZLELLE  025'/LS 80€€ 9zL'L £202Z/L0/70  OzZL'esy 8L0Z/LZIB0  00S°T 000005 o0dn 21MIBS (9018 PSUN
96868 00992 LMEZLELLE  02S'LLS 8vzZ'e 9zL'L £20Z/L0/0  STT'E8Y 8L0Z/SLISO  00S°C 000005 o08n 2IMBS [921ed PANUN
z62'56Y #5592 880/9¥80 089'6L5 980°€ 60L°L £20Z/SLIE0  08T'ZBY 8L0Z/LTIE0  0SL'C 000005 o08n | femeyieH eiussueg
£55°c6Y £1992 yOLILTYYZ S99'2ZS yoz'e 00L°L £202/90/€0  §.8'68% 8L0Z/CL/90  008°C 000005 oo8n 0 fended a18aQ uyor
S91'066 84992 SUVOLEZOE 080'0€0°L 890°€ S60°L €20Z/LO/CO  0SY'S86 8L0Z/E0/80  92LT 000°000'L o08n jesod109 |iqojy uoxx3
892267 96592 GYEX68E89 SVSLLS rSl'e 1804 €20Z/SL/Z0 01088y 8LOZ/NZIE0  $T9T 000°'00§ oo08n “diog spoeI0
15v°06Y £0992 SND/088Z8 0ZL'GLS yor'e 1901 €20Z/L0/Z0  §85'V8Y 8L0Z/SHSO  0SLT 000°005 Q08N dnos Auedoid uowis
1£2'¢86 §v992 G13196268 0EG'EVQ') SLee or0'L €Z0Z/LLIL0  09L'V.6 8102/€0/80  00L°C 000°000'L 208N Wpai) JojolN ejoko L
225'96E 26992 90v09Z8Z6 08L'GLY gelL'e 810"k T20ZLITL  TGG'VBE 8L02/€0/80  008'C 000°00% 208N "ou) esSIA
yv9'16% 66592 o98vYY9/99L  028'ZLS 800°¢ 600'L TT02/50/2L  09L's8Y 8L0ZLTIED  G5ET 000'005 208N "dioD uoiAsYD
966267 71992 LYOMG99Z0  088'9LS 261 066 220Z/9V/LL  0SS'88Y 810Z/ZL/90  009'C 000°005 208N Ueul BpUOH Uedlsluy
€e9'zzL'L 52592 LOOEE8/E0  290'8YL'L 62€T 108 2202/LLISO  996'LeL'L 8L0Z/LOZO  00ET lg8'eZL'L o08n -ou] 9jddy
1pl's6p 16692 ZLA8YYELL G9Z'60S 262 z6L 2202/20/50  S00'/8Y 8102/LT/E0  0STT 000'00S o048n ") o1sdad
ovi'96r 10992 83VAQEZ/8 GBL'ZLS GlLEE 192 Z20Z/L0/70  G8E'E6Y 8L0Z/SLISO  056°C 000005 008n spejuswyY AL
L¥L'986 12992 $Q009L8LF 0LZ'8LO'L 7862 zeL Z202/80/€0  OYL'9L6 8102/02/60  0SZT 000'000'L 208N uosuyor g uosuyor
151'986 €992 ZAQ8LITY. 085'2Z0'L 090 102 2T0Z/90/20  0LL'SL6 8L02/02/60  00€T 000°000'L 008n alquies) 3 Jejood
2£2'666 64997 8VEABLG88 O0V6'GZ0'L 8L0'E 298 1202160 08Y'666 8LOT/LZ/I60  000°€ 000'000'L oodan AuedwoD we
G60'6.6 69992 $OEMG9920  092'500'L 4%+ 185 1202/60/60  0TC'656 8L0Z/0Z/60  00L'L 000'000'% ooan UBULS BPUOH UedLiawy
000°006'€ G8€9Z PHAVOVELE GPO'€0S'S 005'L ors 1202/€2/80  000°005'€ 9L0Z/eZ/LL  00S'L 000'005'€ 208N W LB BWIOH [elepad
605'509'C S9¥9T GYSHIECELE 262'089'C 0zo't zis 1202/92/L0  ¥8L'LL9T L102/82/80  0ZL'L 000'209'2 208n Ipa1D uue [elepad
8956y 21992 8Xa180/LL 0/8'70S 858 65Y LZ02/€0/90  OEl'/8Y 8L0Z/2LI90  0S6'L 000°00§ 208N oul Jozid
£28'686 0/992 OMYOPL8Sy 0LE'900°L 6162 244 L20Z/6LISO 096896 8L02/02/60  00L'L 000°000°L 208N dioD 1ew|
S£9'56Y 85592 618920/€F SLL'€0S 98’z 96¢ VZ0ZILO/P0  008'/8Y 810Z/LT/E0  000°C 000005 o08n "au) Jodeq swoH
6.0'¢05 14892 BY3HEVLEQ §66'80S 9602 (72 LZOZ/SLIED  0L£'90S 610T/LE/L0  008C 000'005 008N LN IVANY TYNOILYN
689266 19992 £QgysLz/L  0L9'900'L 6962 98 1202/82/c0 020286 8L02/02/60  002°C 000°000'L 208N “2U} swiaysAs 09s1D
12.v8L°C 6592 08d8VOELE 8Z0'GBL'Z Lyl vee LZ0Z/6LIL0  B09'E8L'Z 9L0zZ/6LIL0  0OV'L 000'58.°2 o08n eg Ueo eWoH [eJepad
£0L'J6Y 92992 2z1322yve  OVC'€0S 150 c1e L202/180/40 G616V 8L02/LZ/60  0SEC 000'00S 208n O [eyde) aseaq uyor
96.'266 2992 2v3TrLLe6 0EL'E00't 8v8'e 682 0Z0zZ/SLiZL 085616 8L0Z/02/60  006'L 000'000'L 208N "0U] ‘HewBM
szi'aLl 80692 £O£878716 €6v'8LL 865°L 652 ozoz/SLLL  peL'SLL 6LOZ/LEIOL  OSL'L 000'8LL o08n funsesiy s
zL0'LL6'Y 99v92 OMLEVOELE 299'186'% 06¥'L 8¢l 020Z/LLIL0  €L€'086' £102/82/80  009'L 000°6/6' 008N eg Ueo BWOH [elepad
6/8'666 89997 SVE0S569€  0/1'200°) 186 V) 0Z0Z/LLIS0  086'866 8L02/02/60  G/8'C 000'000'L oo8n solweukq [eseus
000°0L 0Ze0e 0ZEOESAS 000°0L 0500 /€ 020Z/20/70  000'0L 0202/20/L0 0500 000°0L asn jueg sn
Z€9°'226'C 9500L 9G00/SAS 2€9°'2.6°€ 058°0 3 T€9'LL6'E LL02T/vT/80  098'0 2€9'L6'E asn djueg SN
€EV'ESL'T 0500 0S00.SAS ££F'€5L'C 1000 L SEF'ESLZ €L0Z/08/00 1000 £EP'eSL'T asn jueg sn
88€'7LT 71002 vL00/SAS 88£ZLE 2000 L 88821 €102/L0/20 2000 88€'7LT 208N oyed 40 yueg uoln
118 04002 0/00/SAS LISV o9’z 1 218y 8LOZ/6LIOL  OV9'Z 118 dwo Wb 1essy eluioye)
902'667'6 00004 0000LSAS 902’6606 oz L 90Z'66Y'6 €L0T/LO/L0  9veT 90Z'667'6 4Iv1 wisanuj fousby |eao]
000'955'6 L0L0L LOLOLSAS 000'955'6 ose’L L 000'955'6 ¥L02/92/LL  058'L 000'955'6 asn N ueg sn
anjep bulfuien # JusUsaAY| diSND  anjeA Jotey PISIA Aunyen aeq 20oud ajeq ajey anfep pajels uelpojsny f 933snaL lanss|
AInb3 03 skeg Kunjey peseyaind -aseyaind isasaju|
«puog
Bunelado
0202/62/20

| abed

poday sainseal]

Aoualy Jamod eluiojijen uisyuoN

SR A Y Y sl

VdON



we yL:0L 0202/90/$0
0LL'68Y 1£992 900208828 $8G'LLS sep'e 8L €20Z/L0/90  SZL'vEv 8L0Z/VTIL0  0SLT 000005 o08n dnoig Auedold uowts
667297 16592 LOVO0ibSe  0S9'SLS 80L'S GL'L €20Z/L0/S0  0SE'08Y 8L0Z/60/50  0STZ 000'005 o08n auj N
ZLL'06Y 12992 IMEZLELLE 025'LLS 16Le 9zL'L £20Z/LO/V0  08L'veY 8L02/22/90  00S'C 000°'00% oo8an IS [921Bd PaYUN
0L6'c6y 96592 8480/9¥80 089'6LS s8Le 60L'L £20Z/SLIE0  08Z'06% 8LOZ/E0/S0  0SLZ 000'005 208an | AemeyieH aiysyiag
627'G6Y 66592 SUVOLEZOE OPO'8LS S50 S60'L £20Z/LO/E0  0L9°T6Y 8L0Z/60/S0  92L°2 000'005 208an je10d100) GO UOXXS
7LL'Z6p 299z L36MGLZLL  OZL'BLS (AR ¥60°L £202/82/20  §S9'/8% 8L0Z/22/90  009C 000'005 008n "o swajsAg 03sI
0L9'LYS 86592 241dEET68  9LL'ZLS £0T'E Spo'L €TOZ/OLILO  ¥6Z'9ES 8LOZ/60/S0  §29T 000°'0SS 208n UP310) J0I0 BIOAO L
10Z'56% 52992 TNVOPLBSY SPE'BLS 0.0°¢ 6L0°L Teoz/siizl  00E'ZeY 8L02/22/90  00LT 000'00§ 208n dioD e
080'8¥2 26992 90VD9Z8Z6 88Y'65C 960°€ 8L0'L ze0zvLIzL  SL6'9YE 8L0Z/v2IL0  008T 000052 208N "0U] BSIA
169061 €159 Savaosky. 09L'Els [T 826 T202/5LI60  S0L'EsY 8LOZWOKO  OLET 000005 008n ebelo}s alland
016'96% 21592 9089/0/EY S96'CLS 816 ze8 TT0Z/LO/90 06276V 8LOZWOM0  SZ9T 000005 o08n "au] jodeq swoH
0r5'8sy 1592 8IVAQEZ/S $82'ZLS 0oL’ 19L T20ZILOMO  00Z'26¥ 8L0Z/E0Y0  0S6°C 000005 208n epenusY gL
650'€6Y 0£992 90Ad8IST $68'CLS 98l €84 T20Z/0IS0 025'/8Y 8L0Z/veIL0  0SY'T 000°'00§ 208n JAuedwog Aeusiq Hem
601 '96% 1592 LvEBLEYES SSE'LLS 862 €l T20ZRLTO  SBTTEY 8LOZWOIY0  SLET 000°00S 008N "diod yososoly
YAYA -4 04592 68V490y90 0Z6'€0S 000°¢ 8zy L20Z/€0/50 SO '98Y 8L0Z/EO/0  0S0T 000°005 o08an 00 UojlBlN AN Jojueg
¥82'TrLL yeL92 LINHODSELE  8YO'EGL'L 219 574 020z/0€/0L  69€E'8TL'L 8L0z/0z/z4  O0E9'l 000°05L°L 208n BI [euOlEN [B1BPSS
£10'0G2 L1292 GSNOLESLE 0€8'95L 0.8 6l 0Z0Z/LL/B0  S¥0'0SL 8L0Z/22/LL 68T 000'052 2008n g UB0"] SWOH [eJepa4
69.'665'C £200L £Z00/SAS 69.'665'C Z00°0 L 692'665'C £L02/10/20 2000 69.'665'C 20dn ojifed Jo yueg uolun
662'LrL'L 2200L Z200/SAS 66Z'LYL'L ovee L 862 LyL'L €LOZLO/L0  9YZT 66Z'LyL'L Elal wnsanul Lousby 207
Juno29y buuejeg vdos
0p9°'L9 $ oro'te $ WZ'T ) 01919 $ 9zZ ov9'ls $ abeisay pue jejo} puny
or9'L9 Sv00L SPOOLSAS 0¥9'L9 vz L or9'Le €L0ZIL0/L0  9¥ZT av9'L9 unysaAu| fousBy 8207
102V uonINny OHO ddiNl
£61°990°2L § L1818 § Lz 809 S9v'506'9L $ 866'L cLg'082'LL abelaAy pue jejo) puni
852'2ZS L¥692 6SWHLEE06 586'625 ars’L €6L') S20Z/LTIO 095728 0202/20/20 008 000'00$ 008N ¥'N ueg SN
000'000'} £2692 S6dNOYELE  0S5°G00'L 0z6'L vLL'L SZ0Z/80/L0  000°000't 0T0T/80/L0- 0261 000°000°L Q08N N U0 BLoH fesapay
000'006°4 68392 p4/HVOELE  OFG'E0S'L 6661 9.9'L #20Z/20/0L  000'00S'} 610Z/70/0L 0002 000°005'} 208n g Ue0T SWOH |esopad
000°000'L 18892 ZHOL19eZ68 020'200'L £2€T L29°L ¥20Z/2/60  000°000°L 6L0Z/22/60  0SL'C 000°000°} o08n Npa1D Jojopy ejoho L
000°00€°Z 8889 OzNM3cElE  Lbb'0ZeT 068'L 129 ¥Z0Z//T/60  000'00£'C 6102/22/60 068} 000°00€'2 o04n HpaI) ULed [eiopa4
000000 98892 /3NGzzrle 00L'LLO'E 0002 699'} ¥202/52/60  000'000'€ 6102/52/60 000 000'000'¢ 208N [eJnynouby [elepad
000'00L'} 24892 950MSP090 8€8'ELL'L 11872 899'L ¥20e/ye/60  000'00L'L 6L0T/W2/60 0052 000'002'L 208n dioQ Balswy jo yued
18¥'LLG 09292 81rHSZ99Y SEL'LYS 196°¢ A y20z/L0/20  0SS'VLS 6102/5L/20  G/8'E 000'00§ 208n uebliopy df
000'6LC 50692 OAINOYELE  L¥TBLE 0002 8ee’l £202/08/0L  000'6LC 6L0Z/0S/0L 000 000'6L2 208N JW UB0] BWOH |esapad
Z6LELLY 02892 81aX68€89 €2L'LL2'Y 0£9Z £62°L €202/5LI60  2SP'90L'Y 6L0Z/LE/S0  00¥'C 000'syL 'y 008n ‘dioQ 8joeIO
£56°296 21992 9DE8LEYES  000'720‘L zLLe ss2'L €202/20/80  QSE'Z¥6 8L0Z/02/60  000'C 000'000'L 208N *dioD LososIN
000'000'L 97992 LANHLEE06  0BY'€90°L 66£°C are'L €20CHT/L0  000'000'L 810Z/S0/80  00F'€ 000'000'L oo8an Aueg sn
7€0°20S 51992 LZV998/2y  G8B8'EES 9eTe 0LL'L €20T/SL/S0  STL'EQS 8L0Z/ZL/0  GIEE 000°'00S o08n Auedwo) AsysieH
anjep Builuen # JuU3USsaAu] dISND  anjep @xtep PISIA Auniep 21eq ?oUd 2jeq ey anjep pajels uelpojsny / a9snil lanss|
AMnb3 03 sheg Aunyen poseyaing ysing ysasau
«puog
Buniesado
0202/62/20

Z abed

poday sJainseal}]
Aouaby Jemod ejulojijed WIOYUON

e N T A TR L)

VdON /



we pL:04 020Z/90/50
y88°LLS 15492 8IrHSZOOY GEL'LYS 5e5°¢ zer'L vZ0ZIOZ0  OTL'SLS 6L02/L0/20  Sl8% 000005 208N ueblon dr
088'S0§ 9592 LSVHSTELL  GE8'9SS 6Lee sTv'L vZozIET/L0  06Y'208 6102/20/20  0S9'€ 000005 208N VN fueaniD
282'705 86292 8NILBOLLL 0ZE'LES 8062 £6Z°L £202/5L/60  0S2'90§ 6LOZ/OE/L0 002'€ 000005 208N ou Jezld
S62'80S 85,92 SHITYLLEE SEL'YES vog'Z ziz'L £202/92/90  096'0LS 6102/40/20  00v'E 000005 208N au] ‘pewiem
Y1£'505 55,92 EHYYOL99L 0ZS'VZS 8T oLzt €20Z/VEI90  §T0'L0S 6102/0/20  L6L'E 000'00§ 208N "dioD uounayd
S65'LYL ovL92 SMEY9L99L  £££'0LL 666 LV €202/9L/S0  0SL'8EL 6L0ZIOE/LO 995 000'052 208N "d10D U0IABYD
€5v'68Y £8592 LMEZIELLE  0TS'LLS svee ozLL €20Z/LOM0  SEL'ESY 8L0Z/9THO  00S'T 000°'00§ 208N JIAIeS [edJed PoNUN
60L'¢6Y 9/69¢ 8480/9v80 089'6LS [224 60L°L £20T/SL/ED 0z6'e8y 8102/9¢/¥0 0s.¢C Q00'00S 208n | AemeyieH auusieg
51826y 18592 048dS00VL  SLy'OLS seze 180°L £202/LT/20  0SE'88Y 8LOZ/I9TVO 001 000'005 208N U Jrexesd
S1Z'Z6Y 6592 SuEAXE8E89 GVS'LLS S6LE 1801 £20Z/6L/T0  0SE'/8Y 8L0Z/9TWO  S29°T 000°005 208n “diog ejoeI0
11676l 51592 £3VH90Y80  0LE'BLS szee ¥90'L £T0Z/6T/L0  06L'L6Y 8L02/9T/V0  056'C 000'005 208N 00 UOJIBI AN JO dues
[ARZ7) LeL9T SINHLEE06 0/E'Z8L ovie 850'L £202/€2V0  006'LYL 6L0Z/0S/L0 098 000'05L 208N v'N “ued Sn
055567 #8592 90V09Z8T6 S.6'8LS svie 8L0'L zeozivLieL  009'TeY 8L0Z/92IP0  008'Z 000'00S 208n “auj esIA
Lov'zey 6£492 YMOS9YST  062°GLS 86T 500'L T20Z/L0/ZL  00b'68Y 6L0Z/0E/L0  0SET 000005 208N JAuedwo Asusia Hem
.1'005 08592 YXOBYYELL GBE'6LS £80°¢ 898 220Z/LLIZ0  0LE'00S 8L0zZ/9z/0  00L'E 000005 208N "ouj 00isdad
12£'€09'S 19v92 S9UBLEELE §SYTLO'E 09L'L Le8 2202/0L/90  09S'7E9'E 1102/827/80  S2LT 000'6/5'S 208N eg UBOT BWOH [e1epad
L£6'220'Y y2592 LOOEEBLE0 ZSO'WLL'Y 6282 108 2202/LLIS0  BES'0Z0'Y 8L0Z/L0/Z0  00EZ 25Y'520'y o08n "ouj eiddy
£92°96Y 2859¢ 8IVAIETLE SBL'TIS seee 192 TTOCNOM0  0S6'T6Y 8L0Z/92/W0  0S6T 000'00S 208N spesuswyY gL
829'56€ 8L59¢ LVESLEYES ¥80'60Y 26T gL Z202/CLIT0  08Y'L6E 8L0Z/9THO  SLET 000'00% 208N “d10D HosomIN
000'6ZL'6 see9T SHA93EELE PLT'6ZL'G 069°L 85y 1202/20/90  000'6ZL'6 9L0Z/Z/90  0B9'L 0006246 208N #pa1O uue [eIepe
000°00€'} 89€97 EMEEOYELE  Z60'LOE'L 005°L £sv 1Z02/82/50  000'00E‘L 9L0Z/0£/80  00S'L 000°'00€"t oo8n By [euotie |esapa:l
000°29L'S 76892 GINEDYELE 295'594'S szo'L osv LZ02/52/50  000'Z9L'S 9L02/5T/S0  ST9'L 000'291°S 208n By feuogeN [e1opad
ov0'6LL'6 ¥5e9z 08d8VOELE  260'02.'6 1L vze L20Z/6L/L0  OVL'SLL'E 9L0Z/6L/IL0  OOYL 000'022'6 208n eg Ue0T SWOH [2sapad
851782y 95€9C LdWDIEELE 980'G8T'Y £9v'L vze L20Z/6LL0  SLL'O8Z'Y 9L02/02/L0  ObY'L 000'582'7 o08n ¥pes) uue [elapad
L6Y'PEE'T 72692 IMAVILELE YSTLYE'T 009'L 192 020Z/LMLL  SEB'GEET 6LOZILLIZL /8L 000'0£€'2 .008n N UBOT SWOH [eiopad
0 15002 LSO0LSAS 0 0000 L 0 £LOZ/LO/L0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
19€'206'L 61004 6L00LSAS L9E'L06°L 2000 ! 19£'206'L €L0Z/LO/L0 2000 L9g'206'L 008N opeD Jo Yueg uolun
pSE'esL's 12004 LL00/SAS VSE'ESL'S orez L YSE'ESL'S 8L0Z/wLIZL  0V9T YSe'esL's do wB jessy eluIoffe]
1zL'882'0L 20002 0000/SAS 2ZL'8EL'OL wzT I 1zL'8eL'0L SLOZILOML0  9vET 1z1'88L'9L 4V wisenu| Koueby (2207
aalasay BunesadQ [ereuan
ovb'896'sz  § lssziv'er  $ 0597 s00L 9ze'e8s'sz  § 1662 89012062 § abesany pue [ejo) pund
000°052'L €892 /3NGZTVLE  §29'VST'L 000Z 699'L vZ02/52/60  000'0ST'L 6L0Z/5Z/60  000°T 0000521 208N feanynoyby [esepad
000005 1£892 LOD19EZ68  0EZ'¥0S oLy 209'} v202/52/.0  000'00S 6L02/ST/L0  OLYT 000008 208N ¥pa1D) Jojol ejokoL
000'081'2 66292 POOLOVELE 69Y'v8L'T 0022 125'L vZ0Z/0ELC  000'08L'T BLOZIOE/VO  00LT 0000812 208n YW UBOT SWOH [eJapa]
000'000'Z 86/92 ZHLSOPELE 0VZ'200'T £58'2 z6t'L ¥20Z/L0/P0  000'000°C 6LOZILOKO 09T 0000002 208n Y UBOT BWOH [eJape
0000002 16192 8M/SOVELE 0952002 09.2 z6t'L ¥20zZ/ILO/MO  000'000°T 6LOZILOKG 9L 000'000'C o08n N UBOT SWIOH |esapad
000'000'2 9892 LDIAVOELE  096'820'C ooL's 1681 £202/827/7L  000°000°2 8LoZ/ge/et 0oL 000'000'2 208N eg UBOT BUWOH [e1apa4
€/8'005°C ¥599¢ 9ZNSOVELE GLS'LZS'T 6£0°€ [T €202/82/80  0SZ'L0ST 8107/32/80  0S0'€ 0000052 208N W\ UBOT SWOH [eJapad
zeL'Ley 9299z €HALBOLLL 0ZTL'PTS ost'e 102"} €202/51/90  055'96Y 8L0Z/2Z/90  000°€ 000'00§ o08n U} 19zi)d
169'209°C £5992 SAWSOVELE ZOL'€L9'T L9%'E L0T'L €202/5L/90  006'€09'C 8L0Z/LL/80  0SLT 000'008'2 208n VW UBOT SWOH [eJapad
anfep bulfared # JUAWIS3AALY dISND  anjep e PIRIA Aunyepn 2jeq ?0ld ajeq ey anjep pajejs uelpojsny [ 333SNL a1anssy
Anbz oysheq  Awunen paseyaing aseyoing jsaua)u|
puog
junoasy Bulduejeg vdos
0202/62/20

¢ afed

uoday sainseal]

Aousby Jomod eiuioyijed WIoyHoN

B stfwf.wv\

VdON |



S0v'05098L  $

Wwe yL:0L

¥20z//zie) Bunels swnhue s|qe|led MNVASN
¥20¢/Lz/z| Buntels swijhue s|qejied MNVESN
120z/g/L Buntels Ajlenuue siqejied  OINTHL
1202722/ 1 Buipes Auspenb siqejied Wdr
$202/S0/1 Uo 2|qelleD MNVESN

0202/0¢/y Uo 8|qelied  JWNTHA

0z02/20/0} Buntels swphue sjqejed  g7HL
1202/.2/60 Bunteys swndue siqeled  go4d
1202//2/60 builels Ajlenuue-jwses s|qejied YLOAOL

0202/5¢/60 Buies Ajlenuue-wes s|qejied DAV
0202/G2/60 Buiuess Ajlenuue-lwaes ajgelied DNV
1202/¥2/60 Builels Ajlenuue-jwss s|qe|ied ovd

020¢2/9¢/8 bBunels Auspenb siqelied DV
€20Z/LL/LOUo BjqeleD LM

1L20z/52/. Buniels Ajienuue-iwas sjgejied Y1OAOL
1202/52// Buipess Ajlenuue-iwss a|qejied Y1OAOL

€Z0Z/SL/L uo 8|gejled . T1OHO
0z02Z/0¢/¥ uo alqelied  DWTHL
0202/0¢/y uo a|gejied  JOWTHL
0202/10/¢ Uo 8|qejed  DWTHL
020Z/L0/ Uo a|geted  DWTHA
0202/82/zL vo djqeed  gH4
0Z02/GL/Q uo BjgelieDd  DWTHA
£20Z/€2/9 U0 8|qe(led asn
Apepenb sjqejed  OINTHL
Ausuenb ejgejled  VINNA
swniue ojqeled 99044
awndue s|qeyed  gH4
swnAue oqejed  g1Hd
Apepenb sjgejed  VINNA

0202/90/€0

LG69¢ #UdSWISIAU|
Ly69¢C #UBUISBaAU]
£269¢ #HUBWISaAU]
C169¢ #uswWisanu|
9069¢ #IUSWSaAU]
G069¢ #AuswsaAu|
6889¢ #UBWISIAU|
8889¢ #AuUsWISaAU|
£889¢ #usWsaAu|
9889¢ #uswisanu]
£/89¢ #UsWISaAY|
€/89¢ #HuswisaAu|
1289¢ #uswisanl|
8789¢ #juswisanu|
} #89C# JuBISaAU|
L £89¢# Juswisanu|
0289¢# JuslIssAu|
9189¢# JUSWISaAU|
66/.9¢# uswisaau|
86.9¢C# juswisaAu|
LBL9C# JUSUISOAU|
9€L9C# JUsUISSAU|
€£G99¢# JUSWISSAU|
9Y99¢# JUBWISIAU]
G8COCH JUsWIISaAU]
89COC# JUBWISAAU|
9GE9CH JUSWISOAY|
GGEOCH JUSUISIAU|
YGEITH JUSULSIAU|
ZEE9TH# Jususanu|

0Z0Z/62/20 1O SE [eUINO[ 192435 [[eM 94} WoJ) Sooud pIq 10 SJU3WSJeIS UBIPOISNY /9)SiuL wodj saoud uo paseq s| anjeA Jo3Ie JusLIND

‘poyiaw JoeX? Uk 9SN SIAYJO [le ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjew o0} SYUOLW 9 UBY} SS3] LM SJUBWISBAU}
*sad£} |le uaamyaq uospedwos Joj siseq e apiaoid o} 1eak Aep g9¢ e U0 paseq umoys st Ajlanjely 0} PAIA Juajeainby puog,

'sI6°CLZ'88L $ 191°C 629 ¢c6'L08's8L  $ L.0C sii'eze'osl $ ISTVYLOL ANVYHD
zLLz56'6L  § 196'465'08  § 5102 €18 zev'ove'eL $ 520 ves'sie'eL § abesany pue fejo) puny
852'22S 16692 6SINHLEE06 S€6'625 ors’L €6L'L SZ0Z/LTIL0 095725 0202/L0/Z0  008°C 000°005 204n V'N Mueg SN
000°006°L z1692 6YINOBZILaY §98°T0G'L 988 zeL'L ve0z/LeiLL  000'005't 8L0Z/LZ/LL  00ET 000°005'L oo08n uebiop dr
000'000°L 06892 p4/HYOELE 09E'Z00' 666'L 9.9'L V20Z/Z0/0L  000°000°L 6L0Z/VO/0L 000 000'000' 208N Bg Ue0T BUWOH [esepad
000°000°€ 12892 YONEZZYLE  0£9'900'E 00L'2 6£9'L ¥20Z/9Z/80  000'000'€ 6L02/92/80  00L'Z 000°000°¢ s08n |eIminoLBY fesepad
000'052 17892 L0D19€T68 S¥E'9SL o' £09'} y20z/5z/L0  000'0SL 6L0Z/S2/L0 0T 000052 208N ¥paiD Jojoy ejokol
000005 91892 YOOLOVELE §T0'L0S 00LZ 1zs'L YZOZ/OE/FO  00000S BLOZIOELO 00T 000005 208N JW U0 SWOH [eiapa
v.0'L97 90692 SAHHBSILE OvE‘LLY €60 9yt vZ0z/S0/Z0  Z98'T9¥ BLOZ/LEIOL  GLEE 000°0vY oo08n 'V'N Sfueg Sn
anjep 6wAue) # JUSWSBAUY diSND  anjep jaxej PISIA Aunmey ajeq 20ud ajeq ayey anjep parels uelpo)Sny / d3)sNi} 1Nss|
AInbz 0y sheq Auniew paseyoind aseysind Jsasuj
«puog
anIasay BunesadQ feiouan
0202/62/20

 abed

poday sainseal)
Aousby Jomod eluiojijen UIsyUoN

AN T b W K et

VdON

4



we g1:0L 0Z0Z/90/£0
660'86Y 8592 OHVHZEBYY 0€9'22S ovie zL0'L €202/90/20  0Z8'96Y 8L0Z/SLIE0 000 000'005 o08n OTTHpaID Wel
06E'virL 67592 /3VH90790 S96'8.L 62Ce ¥90°} £Z0Z/62/L0  0L9'0VL 8LOZ/GLIED  0SBT 000'05Z 008N 00 UOIIBIN AN J0 duEg
6.8'evL 05592 8ly3zeyye 028'T8L voL'e T90°L €20C//Z/L0  8WL'BEL 8L0T/SL/IE0  008'T 000'052 oo8an 0O fende a199Q uyor
16¥'1€L 1559¢ YMOdBOYST G89'€LL v00'e S00°L 220Z/L0/CL  085'8TL 8L0Z/SLIED  0SET 000'05L 208N Auedwo) Asusiq JIEm
000°052 €LE0E VeWLELOvST §8L°09T zsLe 616 2202/90/60 000052 8L02/90/60  0SL'E 000'052 008N Jueg Joroosig
000°052 oLe0e VE4VOEOLBE  §SS'65C Ls0'e €16 TZ0T/LE/B0  000'0ST 8L0Z/LE/BO  0SO'E 000'052 o08n ueg UHoN jesl
000°052 LLE0E Y011€9/6v6 091 '092 vsi'e 413 ZZ0Z/0E/80  000'0SC 810Z/0£/80  OSL'E 000'052 o08n yueg obied sjlepm
2.9'098 66V9Z LDOEEBLED  991°088 6282 108 2ZOTILLISO L1098 Llozeeive  00£2 112198 o08an "ou| ajddy
£60°eyL £959¢ OA3HEGEBY §90'99L £0L'e 89 L20Z/60/ZL  0SY'SEL 8l0Z/GLIED  0SST 000'05Z 208N VN Jueg ONd
000'05¢C Z1e08 VZ03IDL0020 OVL'SST z00'e e 1202/0€/80  000'0ST 81L02/0£/80  000'€ 000'052 208n Aueg Ally
000'000'C 69£9C EMEEOOELE  089°1L00'C 005°L £S5 1202/82/50 0000002 9L02/0€/80 00§V 000'000'2 o08n By |euoneN |eepa4
96Z'86Y 12192 SN319¢268 0L6'80S 9/z¢ 80F LZ0Z/IEWYD  00E'96Y 8L0Z/0E/LL  0S6C 000°00 o08n Hpas) Jojo ejofo L
L0z'26v 92,92 LAOMG9920 092505 S92’ 8re L202/ZLIZ0 0056y 8L0z/0g/LL 0592 000'00S oodn Ueul] BPUOH Uedliawy
o5v'L6 ¥€002 VEO0LSAS 9SP'L6 2000 L 951’16 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 95’16 208n oJ[eD J0 yueg uolun
969'956 12002 LZO0LSAS 969'956 vz L 969'956 €L0T/N0/L0  9veT 969'956 Elval wisaau kousby [e007]
aAlasay Buluoissiwwodaq 099
voy'Los't  $ 196908’k  § eyl ¢ee z89'66v'L  $ 06€'L 000128 $ abeJany pue [ejo] puny
vPY'L0S L 0692 LON96LZL6  196'905'L vey'L £€€ 1202/182/L0  289'66Y'L 0ZOZLENO  0BE'L 000'128°} 208n Ainseasl s'N
0 51002 GLODLSAS O 2000 } [y €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 0 o08n ojifed Jo ueg uomn
oAlaSY [e1oadg |ewisyjoen
loc'ess’t $ Lze'oes’t  $ 8€5L 2z zLz'sss’t  $ 905°'L 000°668'F  $ abesany pue jejol pung
187'682 62692 VSAAVBEELE  0/9'682 LSt zzL 0Z0Z/L0/L0  120'682 0202/82/L0  BES'L 000'L62 1asn eg Ueo" SWoH [eJepad
9z8'665 'L 8269¢C VGAAPBEELE  1G9'009'L zegL zeL QZ0ZNLO/LO  LPL'98S'L 0Z0Z/90/L0  00S'L 000'809't 14sn Eg UE0" BUWOH |eJepad
92IAI9S )qo(Q VY9L0Z 09O
syeveL  § ezv'vzL  § T8 zzL vz $ orsL ooo'szk  $ abeJoAy pue jejo) pung
8YE'YTL 12692 VSAAVBESLE  6ZY'PZL LISTL zeL 0Z0Z/L0/L0  LLL'YZL 0Z0T/8e/L0 OvSL 000'621 Lasn g Ue0 9woH feapad
9JIAI9S J90( YZ 10T 09D
Y2006 $ v16°506 $ 168°L (541 oov'seg ¢ org’L 000'LL6 $ abesany pue [e3o) pung
62,002 9T69T VEEVYBEELE 6V8'00C zesL sl 0Z0Z/LEILO  692'002 0Z02/90/L0  68F'L 000202 18sn eg Ueo" aWoH [elepad
SYE'€0L 05892 OXZVBEELE G90°G0L 966°'L 8yl 0202/22120  LEL'SEY BLOT/OE/IL0  OW6'L 000'60L asn eg UBO BWOH [EJepa4
anjep buikuey #3usunsaAul dISND  anfep Jaxsel PIBIA Runien ajeq dud ajeq aey anjep pajels uelpo}sny  3aysniy Janss|
Ainb3 oyshkeq  Aunie paseyoing aseyound sy
spuog
pung uoidnysuo) Z10Z 039
0202/62/20

) abed

poday sJainsesi]
Kousby 1omod eruiojifen uloyuoN



558°129°22

$ ‘pee'ele'le $

Ajuo 1.z0z/8z/1 Uo 8jqelied

020¢/z1/50 Bunsels Auspenb sjqejied
0202/20/04 Buipels swiiue sjqelied
0202/20/0L Buiuels swijAue siqe|ed
0202/52/60 Buiels Ajjenuue-iwiss a|qe||ed

020¢/0¢E/y uo jqe|e)

020¢/1L0/v Uo 9|qe|ed

0¢0¢/L0/v Uo 8|qejie)

L20z/cz/2 Buneys swihue s|qejien
Apspenb s|gejen

Apsuenb sigejed

we s4:0L 020Z/90/€0

OWTHL L ¥B9C# Jusussaul
OWTHS 0169¢# Jusiisaau]
g71Hd 1689¢# JustuisaAu|
g1Hd 0689¢# JUBWISIAU|
OWV4 1/89¢# JUswisaaul
1202/Se/. Buiues Ajlenuue-iwes ajqe|ied YLOAOL Zvg9g# juswisanu|
OWTH4 6189¢# JusWisaAu|
OWTHL 8189¢# JusWisaAyy
OWTHL 2189¢# JusWwisaAu)
8044 vy99c# JusIsaAu|
VNN 69€9¢# Juswissauj
VAN €€€9C# uswisanu|

02Z0Z/62/20 3O SE [BUINO[ J23J}§ |2 33 Woa) S3aud piq Jo SJUatLRIe)S UBIPO)SND /23)Sni ] W0y saoud uo paseq s| INjeA JJRY JUND

"poyjaui J9exa ue asn sJAYJo [je ‘poyiaw jewnxoidde ue asn Ajunjews 03 sYUOW g UBYJ SSI| YJIM SJUSLIISAAU|
-sadAj jje usamjaq uosuedwos 1oy siseq e apiaoid 03 Jeak Aep gog € uo paseq umoys s| Ajinjepy o} PISLA JusfeAInb3 puog,

z8¢T 266 90s'viSLT  $ ¥82T £9¢€°269'2 $ :$TVLOL ANVHO
15288k ¢ voL'ces't ¢ yzo'l 134 266°185°L  § zzo'L 000°c8s’t  § abesany pue [ejol pung
000'2LG'L £E€92 GINEDGELE  LPO'BLG'L SZ9'L osy L20Z/S2/IS0  000°LLS'L 91025250 ST9'L 000°ZLS'L 1asn By feuoeN [elepad
186'G9 19892 1a196/2L6 159'G9 06571 g9t 0ZOZ/ELIBO  966'%9 61L02/92/80  18S'L 000'99 asn Aunseal) 's'n
UN022Y ¥SA VYZL0Z 09D
15102912 § 90029612 $ £09°C veLl sb0'888°1T  § ol 14 £9c'8691Z  § abesaay pue [ejoy puny
09¥'666'L 992 PINrICELE 0ZE'LS0°T SSp'e 0/8°L GZOZ/EZ/ILO0  00E'666'L 8L0T/LT/IL0  OSY'E 000'000'2 oo8an WpauD uLe [esapad
000'%09'L 01692 LONNOYELE  082°G09°L l4dXA yAVAY ¥ZOZ/ZLILL  000'v09'L 6LOZ/ZL/LL  000°C 000'%09'L o08an M UBOT BWOH esepa
000°000°L 16892 ¥4ZHVOELE 09E'Z00°L 6661 9.9t ¥Z0Z/ZO/0L  000°000°L 6L0Z/F0/0L 000 000°000'L 208N g Ue0 eWoH [eJepad
000'052 ¥2892 L3NGTZYLE SLL'TSL 0002 699°t ¥Z0Z/52/60  000'0SL 6L02/52/60  000T 000'05Z 208N lednynoliby [esepe
000'00S 2va9z LADL9EZ68 O0ET'VOS olre £09°L $202/52/L0  000°00S 6L02/ST/L0  OLPT 000°00S 208N WpauD Jolol ejofo L
000'096'L 61892 POOLOPELE 8LO'YO6'L 0022 125°L ¥Z0Z/0E/P0  000'096°L 6LOZ/0E/P0  00LT 000'096'L oodn N Ue0 SWOH [e1apad
0000002 81892 CHLSOVELE 0F2'200'2 £98°C z6v'L ¥202/L0/P0  000'000°C 6L0Z/LOPO0  0S9'C 000'000'C oo0an W UBOT BUloH [BJepad
000°'000°} 21892 8r.SOvVELE 0821001 09T z6Y'L ¥Z02/L0/70  000'000°L 6L02/LOW0  09LC 000°000°L oodn Al UBOT BWOH [2apad
000'052 ¥LEOE VbESDTZIELL 8¥8'¥9T Loe'e S8e'L €202/,0/60  000'0SC 8l0Z/L0/60  00S€ 000'052 008N YN Xueqno
000'052 60£0€ VedO18226C €16'€9C £02T'E L €Z0Z/0E/80  000'0SZ 8L0Z/0E/80 00ZE 000052 208N VSN Nueqieul
95+'e6 L6892 /d9NOYELE  BOZ'6ES GE9'L vre'L €20Z/92//0  89¥'SEB 020Z/Le/10  0S9'L 000'GE6 o08n JN UeoT BWoH jesspad
anfep, Builiren # JUBWISAAUY| dISND  onjep jatepn PISIA Kunyep aeq 2oud ajeQ ey anjep pajels uelpoisng / a9)shit Janssy
Anb3 0} sheq Ayungeny paseyaing aseyaind Jsatau]
«puog
aAIasaYy Buluoissiwwosaqg 099
0coz/ezee

Z 9bed

uoday sJainseal]
AoueBy Jomod eruiojijen usoyuoN




we g0l

0Zoz/90/c0

sILieLy  $ soT'veL'y ¢ 6e5°L 2zl 6zs’1eLy  $ 105°L 000'96'y  $ abesany pue |ejol pung
192'908 5£69T VSAAVBEELE ©6T°208 LISL 4% 0Z02/L0//0  £29'508 0Z0Z/82/L0  OVS'L 000'LL8 1asn g UBOT SWOH [eiopal
9Y6'r26'e p£69T VGAAVBEELE  116'926°C 25l <4 0202/L0/20  906'GL6'E 0Z0Z/90/L0 005} 000'676'E 18sn g UBOT] BWOH (2s0pad
901A19G 1990 V610T O41pAH

805725’ § oco‘szs’e  § 655°L 243 gev'oLs’s  § 1061 000'355's  § abeiaay pue [ejoL pund
886'GrL'L ££692 VSAAVBEELE GEL'OVL'L LIG°L [«4% 0202/L0/20  TOEWKL'L 0202/82/\0  ObS'L 000°25L'L lasn eg UB0T aWoH [esopo-
025'8L8'S 26692 WSAAVBEELE GBT'LBE'S zEe8'L 448 0Z0Z/LO/L0  LEL'99e'S 0ZOZ/9O/LO 005t 000'907'S lasn 28 UBOT 9WOH |esopad
821A19G 1990 V810Z 04PAH

96L'vz9's ¢ 991'/29's ¢ 8es°L 443 zos‘Li9's  $ 906°L 000'¢59's  § abesay pue [ejoL pund
GLELER'Y L£69Z VGAAPBEELE BOB'EE8'Y TeSL 4" 0Z02/L0/L0  /8L'0Z8'% 0Z0Z/90/L0  005'L 000'958'7 14asn g UBO0T] SWOH [BI9pad
L¥8Z6L 0£692 VSAAVBEELE BGE'E6L Li5°L 4% 0202/40/20  SLL'LBL 0Z02/82/L0  BES'L 000°26L Lasn g UE0T SUWOH [elopad
991A198 }q3(] 0IpAH

6so‘ces'st ¢ £z0‘020'0L  § 29¢°T 618 ozL'zeL'sl 8£22 8l9'ses'sl  § abesany pue jejo) pund
000°155'L §269¢ IrYNOVELE  1652SS'L 000'C 96L'L GTOZ/OE/L0  000'LSS'L 020Z/0EML0 000 000°185'L 008n N UBO"] SWIOH [eJepa
/89'025 05692 ZAQZPLIES 610825 vyl 0sL't ¥Z0ZISHZL  SL6'0TS 0Z0T/L0/20  0S9°T 000'00$ 208N "ou} ‘Hewiem
000'005"V 10292 SHAIVOELE GOL'BIS'L 0sze 1ze'L €202/64/0L  000°00S'L 8L0C/6L/0L  0SZ'E 000°005°} 208n Bf UBOT] SUIOH [21opad
902'G€S 25992 00309LP6L  158°G95 $86C 961L €20Z/L0/S0  099'8Z5 8L02/60/80  00LT 000°055 o08n 00 anljow(ed-sjebod
Q0€'06Y 02992 IMBZLELLE 0ZSZLS z8Le ozl £20Z/L0/¥0  006'¥8Y 8L0Z/EL/A0  00ST 000°005 o08n anes jeased PepUN
0ze'e6y S¥59T SHEX68E89  SYSLLS leLe 180"t £20Z/5L/20  GlL'BsY 8LOZWLIED  529C 000005 208n ‘dioQ epeIo
88L'c6l 61992 G13196268 G9.'LeS size ovo'L €20Z/LLILO  00L'68Y 8L0Z/ELS0 0012 000005 208N HpalD Jojol ejoko L
95.'96Y 1y592 90vV09Z8Z6 G.6'8LS Lso'e 8L0'L zeoTvLiTL  OLb'beY 8LOZIWLIED 00872 000'00S oo08n “ou| BSIA
000°00€'L 11692 OANOVELE €02°10€°L 006'L 886 2T0TwL/LL 000'00E'L 6L0ZLLL  006L 000°00€"t o08n N UEOT BWOH |eJepad
9.6'L6Y oys9T savacory. 09L'ELS 150°€ 826 2202/51L/60  0LL'G8Y 8LOTWLIED  0LET 00000 ooan abeso)s alland
000°00§ 6¥69C OXTIIEELE  S¥C'005 0£9'L 188 2202/50/80  000'00S 0202/50/20  0€9'L 000°00§ 208N UP8IQ uLe [esepay
000'005 8¥60C OXT13EELE  SPZ'00S £70T 188 220T/50/80  000°00S 0202/50/20  0€9't 000°00S o08n UpalQ wied [eispad
LL0'8%S 16992 LOHHBSLLB  §/E'295 z8le 42 TTOTISLIED  L09'OVS 8L0Z/0L/B0 000 000'055 208N ueg sn
16L'76% 12992 LIYOLEZOE  066'80S 6T g€l 2202/90/€0  OSE'08Y 8LOZ/ELI0  LBET 000'00S 208n Jesodiod GOy uoXx3
656'C6Y 8199z 8DVNOEELO 0Z2'60S vie'e 689 2T0T/5UL0 OZp'esy 8LOZ/ELI0 6292 000005 208N i) g Bubjueg youeig
296'000'L 269z LON96LTLE  L¥9'Y00'L ver'L 35 L202/82/L0 88666 0TOZ/LEND  OBE'L 000'7L0'} o08n Ainseas) ‘s
6v8'066'L 60692 GBPHIEELE BEE'E00'T 909'L (>4 0Z02/9Z/0L  £GL'L66'L 6L0Z/90/LL  0SLL 000°G65'} o08an Ipa1) ue felepsd
SLO‘LL LE00L LEOOLSAS §L0'LL 2000 L SLO'bL €L0Z/10/0 2000 SLO'LL oo8n OJiied 40 Yueg uolun
£09'¥LY'Z 8200L 8C00LSAS E09'VLY'T oreT L £09'7LY'C €L0Z/LOILD  9¥TT £09'¥LY'T Elal wisanu| Aoueby [eoo]
anjep buiXien ## JUBLLISBAUL dISND  snjep e PIRIA Aanzeyy ajeq 2aud ajeq ajey anjep pajeis ueipojsny / 83jsnd 1nss|

Anbz oyskeq  Aunje paseysing aseyaind Isasau|
puog
0IpAH aAI9SaY "Ad( [enden
020z2/62/20

| afed

podoy sainseal]

Kouaby Jomod eluiojijen uIdyUON

ST o b A b

VdON



we gL:oL 0202/90/€0

¥20Z/S1L/01 Buntels swndue sjqejed  LINM 05692 #IUBWISOAU|
0202/5/G Buipeys swnhue sjgejled g04d 6¥692 HUBWISSAU
020z/5/s Buiers swnAue aigejled 9044 8¥69Z Husuysaauy
Apsuenb sjqeied  DWTHA S2692 #HuUSWISaAU|

Apapenb sjqejed  DWTHA LL69TH Jusuwisaau|

0202/€0/60 oy swnhue pue uo 9|qe|ed 9044 G/89Z# UBW]SeAU|
0zZ02Z/61/0L un 8|qeed  g1H- L0/9z# uswisaau|

Apeuenb ojqejied VNS 6S£92# WUBWISOAU|

0Z02/62/20 30 SE [euInor J9a4S ||eM 243 Wolj saoud pig Jo S)usWalelS Uelpolsnd [a)stu L Wol) saoud uo paseq sl anjep JXely Jualind

*poyIall J9BXD UR 3SN SI5UJ0 {jB ‘poyjaw ajewxosdde ue asn Ajunjewl 0} SYUOW 9 URY} SSB| Y}IM SJUBWISAAUL
*sadA) |le usamiaq uosuediiod Joy siseq e apiaosd o} Jeak Aep og e UO paseq umoys si Ajunjely o0} plaLA Juajeainb3 puog,

sov'zze'es § '88¢'c89'6¢  $ 856°L ;727 9l9'sbT6e  $ v68'L slLo‘osp'ee  $ 18 TVLOL ANVHD
ve9'LLY'y zze'tesy  $ vze'e 859 essaly’y  § 1ze'z 000'sl¥'y  $ abesany pue jejot pung
000'051 6/89¢ QOHMIEELE 08E'0SE 058l zeL 220Z/€0/€0  000'0Sk 6102/€0/60  058°L 000'05L asn pau) wue [eJjepad
899'/26'¢ 25852 zaavalele 119’620’ 08e'T £89 TLOTIELILO  TET'9Te'Ee TLOZ/60/C0  SLET 000'826°¢ asn JA UBOT BWOH [esepad
000'76 6592 16SEDOELE  $L0'6 0€5'L 14%] L20T/8T/L0 0006 9102/82/20  0€S'L 000'¥6 asn By leuoneN |esepad
866Gy L 6E59C OXE8T8TLE 985 /YL 152°C <3 VZ0TISLIZD  T66'SPL 8102/22/20  0STT 000'9¥L asn Ainsessy 's'n
820'00) veoz 62633€ELE  ¥9T'00L 089'L 951 0Z0Z/v0/80  6TE'00L Gl02/82/80  0SL'L 000°00L asn HpalI) uued [esaped
YHSd Z10Z OIpAH
vrLos’t  $ 196906k  § vyl £ee 289'66v'L  $ 06¢’L 000'tzs‘t  $ abeJaAY pue [eJOL puny
Py'LOS L Zr69T LON96LZL6  L96'90G'L ver'L £€€ 1202/182/L0  T89'66Y'L 020Z/LE/NLO  0BEL 000°LZ5'L o08n Ainseaul SN
0 91004 9L00LSAS O 2000 L 0 €1L02/L0/L0 2000 0 oo0an oji[e Jo yueg uolun
0 €000/ 0000LSAS 0 12870 L 0 ELOTNLO/LO  LLE0 0 Ellal wisenul Ausby jeoo
oAl9saY |eloads 0IpAH
08°689 $ 120689  $ 0811 9Z9 16£°169 $ 5/8°L 000°689 $ abesany pue |ejol pung
¥08'689 zevoe £VEBOPELE  120'689 0821 928 1202/60/80  L6E'LBY LL0Z/gTP0 GL8'L 000'689 asn A Ue0T] BWoH [elepad
Juno2oY 91eqdy VZ10Z 0IpAH
anjep Buihuie) # JUdULISIAUY dISND  2n[eA 193 4e PIBIA Kunjew B EET] B ajey anfep poreis uetposny / 39)snaL Janss|
Anb3 o0y skeq Kunjen paseysind eseyaing Js049u]
«puog

z oabed

JUN022Y 8Jeqay VZ10Z 04pAH
0202162/20
B T o Rt N A LU\

uoday sJainsealy <nmnvz

Aouaby Jamod eiulojijes ulayHoN



£vT'6ee $

we giL:0lL 0Z0Z/90/¢0

0Z0Z/62/20 1O SE [LUNOC J33.4)S [{BM 243 Wod) Sao1d pig 40 SjUaWia)e)s UeIPoISnD ja9)SNUL Woly sadud uo paseq si anfeA Ja)Je JusIND

‘poyjaul Joexa Ue asn Si3yjo Jje ‘poyiaiu ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o} syjuoW 9 Uey} SSI] YIIM SJUSWIISIAU]
*sadA) Jle usamjaq uosuedwod 10} siseq e apiaoad 0} 1eak Aep Go¢ & U0 paseq umoys si AjUnjely 03 PISIA JudjeAinb3 puog,

‘GSp'6Ee $ oreL £oL vze'ses $ 8T geL'ove $ :$TIVLi0L ANVYED
£pT'6se $ ssv'eee  $ oveL <ot vze'ges $ 81Z'L scL'ove abesany pue Jejol pung
505'5Z2 9v69C VOOVYBEELE  L1L'G2T £95°L [£3+]1 0Z0Z/€0/80  981'GZT 0Z0T/8T/L0 0ES'L 000°222 1asn eg U0 aWoH [elapa4
8EL'ELL L1062 LLOBZSAS 8El'EllL 0090 L 8EL'ELL 0Z0Z/¥Z/L0 0090 8EL'ELL 1asn IsnuL ueg sn
snjep buikued #Jusunsanu] dISND  3njeA jaxien PIBIA Aunen ejeq adud ajeq ey anjep pajes uelpojsny / aajsniy Janssy
Ainbg 0y sheq Aunjepy paseyaing aseyaund 1sau93u]
«puog
9AS 3920 V6102 sani|ioey ded
0202/62/20 -

| abed

Joday sJainseal]
Koueby Jomod erulojijed uioyuonN

L P T

VdON



we gL} 0202/90/€0

pung ¥sa 0102 L# onss| 031

6/Tv89  § 895'y88  § z85°) z6 015289 ¢ 0ss'L 000°289  $ sbesony pue Jejo) pung
009'00} 6£69C V6dXV8EELE ZP9'00L 085°% 6 0202/L0/90  9G1'00L 0z0Z/8ZN0 0SS} 00010} 18sn eg UBOT OWOH |eioped
6/9'¢85 1269¢C V 6dXPBEELE  OT6'E8S T85'L 6 0T02/L0/90  ¥i1'28S 6L0C/0E/TL 0S5} 000'985 18sn g U0 SWOH [BISpS4
pung sa v.io0z L#enss| 931

ZvL'i8sy  $ 25c'688'r  § SLyL 12 125825 ¢ 88e’L 188'Z09'y  $ abeiany pue lejol pund
188'28. 8€69Z VBdXYBEELE 8LZ'€8L 086'L 6 0Z0z/t0/90  0LL'L8L 020Z/82/L0  08G7L 000'982 18sn g UBOT SWOH [eJ3pad
¥16'€20'¢ 02692 V 6dXVBEELE  £62'620'S z85°L 6 020Z/L0/90  0/8'GLO'E 6Loz/I0E/ZL  0SS'L 000'9€0°¢ 18gsn g U0 BWIOH [eepad
188'082 21082 ZL06/SAS 188'08L 009°0 L 188'08L €L0Z/LO/Z0 0090 188'08L asn IshiL dueg sn
pund Sg €010¢ z# onss| 931

8Ll $ 8Ll $ 0090 1 8Ll $ - 0090 8iL $ abesany pue [ejo) pungd
8Ll 11062 LLOBISAS 8LL 0090 L 8LL €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 8L asn IshiLjueg sn
pund SQ v0L0Z Z# anssi 031

01080z $ £€9'802'C  $ §5T1 z9 08e'v0z'c  $ vez'L .8'e1TT  $ abeJoAy pue jejo) pung
180'vEL 1£692 VEAXVEEELE LEEVEL 08s'L %6 0Z0Z/L0/90  ¥EQ'EEL 0Z02/82Z/L0  BYSL 000'2€2 Lasn eg U0 BWOH [eepad
150°0%L 61697 V 6dXVBEELE  0LE'OVL Z851 6 0Z02/L0/90  ¥.0°8EL 6L0Z/0E/2L  B¥S L 000'€rL Lasn g UE0T SWOH [eleped
z/8'EEL #0062 Y006/SAS T/8'EEL 0090 L z/8'€EL €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 zi8'eel asn JsnuLjueg SN
pund sa g010Z L# anss| 9371

esLLPLY  $ sbe'TYL'y yov'L 18 o0L'0eL'y  § 9epL paLiLsly sbieiany pue lejo) pund
1195 98697 VBAXVBEELE 286'/9G 085°L 26 0Z0Z/L0/90  ZE6°995 0z0Z/8Z/L0  08S°L 00005 1asn eg UeoT aWoH [eiopad
159'909'¢ 8169¢C V 6dXVEEELE  281'809'S 7851 6 0Z0Z/L0/90  1L66'965°C 6LOZ/0E/ZL 0SS} 000°129'€ 1asn eg Ueo] BWOH [esopad
¥8.'995 £0062 €006LSAS V899G 0090 L 8995 €L02/L0/L0 0090 ¥8.'995 asn IsniL yueg SN
pund SQ v0L0zZ L#enss] 031

ooL'soL  § ooL‘'soL  § WTT ) ooL'sal  § WwTT ooL'soL  § obelaAy pue [e}oL pung
001'504 9v00. 9V00LSAS 00L'S0L ree L aoL'sal €L0Z/LOIL0  9vTT 001'50L wsenu| Aousby [220]
anjep buiAue) # JUaW}S3aAU] dISND  2njep 1axep PISIA Aunep eq 9oUd ajeq ajey anfep pajess ueipojsny / 233sniL Janssj|

Anb3 0} sheg Ayanyew peseyaind aseyaing 1sasalu|
«puog
J00Yy uoldny H9HO 937
0202/62/20

| abed

podoy sJeinseal]

Aouaby Jomod eluiojijen uioyuoN

AU E Nk 2 Tl T ek IR

VdON



Ajuo 1z0z/8z/L uo 8jqejled
020z/91/7 Jeye awpAue pue uo s|ge|led
Z202/Z2/Y 1eye swnAue pue uo sjqejjed SN 2289Z# Jususanuyj

swnfue s|qelle)  g9Odd LE€EIZTH IUSWISAAUY

020Z/62/20 JO St |ewnor J3a.08 |lepd 2Y) Wosj sasud piq 4o SJU3WAYL]S UIPOISNY) /33)SNU | Wol} saoud U0 paseq St anjep jalep a:m._...w.nv

OWTHd S169z# usunseAu|
OWTHd £689Z# uaunsanu|

*poYISUE JIBX2 UL 2SN SIAYYC J[e ‘poyzawl ajewuixodde ue asn ALNjew 0} SYUOW § UBL) SS3] LIM SJUSLSAAU)
*s9dA} e usamjaq uosieduwiod Joj siseq e aplaoiad o} Jeak Aep g9¢ e U0 paseq umoys s| AJUnJeN 03 PIRIA Judjeainb3 puog,

vo'spe'ee  § ‘§96°'99v°9¢  $ 985°L (%4 8TL'esv'9E  § 1790 699'Z2e'9e  $ :STVL0L ANVYDO

ZELIEY'LL  § §99°029°LL  § v89'L 99¢ opr'LerLl  § zoLL 662'95Y'LL  § abesany pue jej0) puny
090'96% 26692 LO9TZLEYL SEL'00S 9L'L 9eL'L y2ozOZL  695'96Y 0Z02/£0/20  0SZ'€ 000's9Y o08an eroueuld sefidiaied
000°052'} £689C LEMNDYELE  €16'05C'L 0002 vee'l €20Z/9L/0L  000'0ST'L 6L0Z/94/0L  000T 000°'052'L 208N I Ue0] BWoH esepay
29v'166 [44: 174 LOdHLEE06 695'LLO 95T €18 TTOZ/ETISO  06Z'868 6L0Z/LEISD  0S9'T 000565 o08an VN Sueg sn
206'96% £5692 8rO10ET68 765667 §55°1 585 1202//0/0L  G66'96% 0Z0Z/E0/20 008k 000'S6% 2o08n 1pa1Q Jojoly Elofo )
205'66Y 26892 £8AMICELE  DEL'E0S 085°L oLy L202/5LV0  SEc'eeY 6L0Z/SLO0L 0054 000'00S oo8n WpauD e jeiopad
000'000°¢ LPEIT ZrNEO9ELE  09Z°L00'E 00g'L k43 0Z0Z/0£/90  000'000'E 9L0Z/0E/90  00E'L 000°'000'c oo8n Bi |euogeN |esepad
206'7L9's ovbez ooravoele 694'219'e 055°L 96 020Z/50/90  ZGB'EL9'E LLOZIOE/90 OVl 000's19's o08n ©f UEOT BWOH [eJapad
zee'e L#00L LYOOLSAS ZZg'9 2000 ! zze'e £L0Z/8L/0 2000 zee's folel:] ojtjed J0 yueg uolun
1/6'625'L 2¥00L LYOOLSAS 116'625'L TT ! 116'625'L €L0ZNN0I0  9¥2T 116'625'L unsanu| kausby jeoo
OAI9SRY N O 031

zesicl'L  § 080'vEL'L ¢ yeg'L 8Lg £89'0cl’s  § 616°) 600°9€L'L  § abesany pue [ejoL pund
§81'08€ G¥69C LQONOYELE 0LL'L8E SE9'L el £202/82/0  061'08€ 0Z0ZILEND  0S9'L 000°08€ 1asn WA UBO BWOH |eIspa
86€'05L vve9T LAVOBLZLE  L9E'LGL vBY'L 218 0Z02/0E/20  v8Y'6hL 0Z0ZLENOD  £SPL 000'652 Lasn Ainsea1] ‘'s'n
600'L €106/ £L06/SAS 600'L 0090 L 600' €L0Z10/0 0090 600'L asn IsnL djueg sn
S8vg ¥Sa 190102 Z# 9nss| 037

088z $ TeTres £55'1 yoL vb'esr's  $ gez'e 8LTTeeT  § abesoAy pue fejo) pung
opg'syl S¥89T 9NZVBEELE vBL'SYL 086'L 28 0Z0ZvTIL0  0BO'LbL 6L02/57/L0  0Z6'L 000051 2080 Ef UBOT] SWOH [2sopad
652'551'Z SsvoT 9630/8ELE  OV6'SSL'Z ovs'L €0L 0ZOZ/ZLI0  9vl'sez'T 1102/87/L0  SlEE 000's¥4'Z asn 6 UBOT SWOH [2I3pa
8128 90062 9006/SAS 81Z'/€ 009°0 L 81T €L02/L0/0 0090 812'Le asn IsnuL jueg sn
AS8Y sqng sgva 90102 L#ss] 031

vL0°250'6  $ esL'scL'e  § oLt 619 §9L°060'6  § 9g8'L 88¢°180'6  § abesoAy pue fejol pungy
18Y°2EL'Y £9v9Z 6906.EELE  99L'LLZY 09L'L L€8 7202/0L/90  90€'89L'Yy 1L02/192/80  SZL'Z 000001t asn eg UB0 BWOH |elepad
66L'ayL vsvez 603VILELE 6EC0S) 6691 625 12022180 8y9'opl 110218210 STLL 000051 asn N UEQT BWOH [esopay
000'09€'Y T /geee 1Z993ICELE  LEL'OYE'Y 659'L osv 120Z/52/S0  000'09¢'y 9L02/80/90  099°) 000'09€'y asn paID ule ] [esapad
0Py £769Z VEDVSBEELE GES'SLY 185°L o0ze LZ0ZISLILO  £Z8'ELY 0Z02/8T/L0  00S7L 000'02Y Lasn &g UBOT] 9WOH [eleped
98€'t 50062 S006/SAS 88t'l 009°0 | 88g'L €L02/L0/20 0090 88’} gsn Isnu) jueg sn
anjep buikued #jusunsaau] dISND  en[eA e PIRIA Aunyey 2jeq °3Ud ajeq aey anfep pajels uelpojSND [ 99)SNIL Janssj

anbz o) sheq Aungey paseyaing yaing Jsoay]
Jpuog
pundg ¥sq 010z L# @nsst 931
0202/62/20

uoday sjainseal ]

SORTY RENDS MRS Iﬁ
¥

Aouaby 1amod eruioyijes ulsyuoN
z obed



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

March 17, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  March 26, 2020

SUBJECT:

Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth <, 0 (. METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San F’anci;‘;:i':?’r:;:; 00  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [] Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other

o o o o o o

SR: 133:20



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
March 17, 2020

Page 2
RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of the following:
e Spare Stator Bars from old Generator (Hydro)

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

RQpectfully submitted,
RANDY S.‘HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Declaration of Surplus
Receipt of disposal

SR: 133:20



1 INFWHODVLLY

HITTIOUINODUYTANSVILL OL TYNIDHHO

STAVHDS 1d) HOO0d (V] ADVHAAV (D) d00D (@) INFTTIOXH ‘NOILIANOD =
(JJOVNVI TV &zmcv/ "

‘ALvda WAty AIIO0Ud OL
‘snjeA |ejowt delios Joj joS @ _ mam z P\w \ J NOLLVZIMOWLOY

(HADVNVIN 'NID "LSSV|

NOLLVDLALLSNI NOLLISOdSId 050 i {0)0) A4 GIAOULAY
MNAS/HSYYL - AN TVA ON ANTVA TIDADTWAVEIS  p  “IVSOdSId U0 &L N W 7
NOLLDNV Saig aAIVES ATVS DITdNd \w
AIVS (Ieald) AALVILODAN \\3‘&«‘ Ow\*..u \N A9 QHUVdAUd
INOLLISOdSIU QAANTWNOD AU v/ ‘ k\@ %

‘Aiojueaul ojul paoeld usaq aAey pue puimal ay} Jo} Sieq Jojels au) yim Buole painjoejnuew aem
saleds meN -un [euiBuo ayj 1oy sieq Joje;s aieds ay) Buiddesos aq jjim snjdins Jo uonesejoep Sy Puimal B suobiopun aAey g pue | Sjuf) Jojeisuss) afjialeL|io)

TYSO4SIA/SNTLANS Y04 NOLLVIILLESNI

'3

‘L

9

S

K2

€

T

sAydinpy 6092 £06'9% ai09°L$ X tea/sal 82 S lojessuan [euibup wouy sieg Jojels eledg es 65 |
NOILV)DO] TVLOL LINO (SNIA % SNDT S PPON

ALIS # pafoaq 10 2xANOD sjqeayddy v Swipnpup) W/ | ALO
&adoag VAON ANTVA GALVINLLSA NOLLAIMDSAA

INTNLINOA ® STVIIALVIA ‘SAI'IddAS
SAIANS A0 NOILVIVIOHd

J)je
0civelre red AINIOV UIMOJ VINHOIITYD NHIHLHON

VdON




8/9G6 VO 9|IA8S0y ‘Al 22J8WW0) LG9

P 3saybay sa3113s
y Z

e

7
FYN1YNOIS s.83T113S

Jiig qung

0} seBewep Joj s|qisuodsal 8q 0} sea1B8 JeAUp pue Jspunalsy AlusLem AUE 10 Uaessq e wiol Buninsas 'ses) s,Asulone 9igeuosess Buipnious ‘saillige) pue spuswsp sefewep oy sseiuey Jakng pioy pue

“Butpeojun Suunp aRyaa

x‘"_gwnc‘ [ 1538 SB UMOUN 0812 | IuawoasBy ssajwieH pjoH
1081105 pue any} 1 6UIOBaI0; U 12U} Ainliad 10 AjjBuad JGpUN SIBI0BR | LORDESURA SIUI Ui BEUIRILOD [BUSIBW 8102104021 jie pue Aue woy patenoene Auadosd uses saey swesabugal 947 Hfe 1eys sailued paubisiapun sy 10y AV Les|) 0661 SUi 4O (2808
pue (1) (QIB0G SUSHIOBS LM S8OUBDIODDE U "0S|Y 'DIEA Uil MBN SU 1 Of BWES jO s ABAUCS pue jj8s | pabpamouoe Agausy ‘|in) ul paassas JUSWARG 10§ 1BU) PUE ME| S121S 10 (B8PS AQ PBULSP S8 [BUSIEW SNOPIBZEY CU SUIBIUCS 1t 1BU} 'UOISIAIDGNS |B3111j0d 40 © 00 SUOREJUNWILOS

{0t'908'rS Juswifed jejo)

02 UopevodsuRi} ‘AN oGnd e 0 Ausdoid sy seam [BLISiB BU) j0 BUOU Jeu) ‘abe Jo sieak g1 Jan0 WE | Eu) 'Swield AUE jO 33} i [BUBIRW SA0GE 8U) 1BY) ‘SWES i3S 0} 1B B4} SABY | JEU 'UCSIeU PBGHOSEP [BUSIBW BU] JO JSUMO [NiMB] S} W | 18U SiEiS AGaisy | :81eS 30 g

uehAy

A8 G3HOIIM,

w juaunsnipy asloAu|

{ppwipaunuy Sed 03 3O “SjRLIDIRUI PAIOLIISAL ON

07908 +S  [0v'908°%$  [00°0$ -sjejoL INNOD NO LNIWAVd ISVE - (0S) 'SANNOJ NI LHOIFM NO LNINAYA 3SV8 - AILvOIYDIS (MS) ‘SISVE LNIWAV -

$ O
08°969°¢S 08969+ 000§  HI €01 $ Teg 11240y MS 095 ata! 0041 O 1addoo
09°601S 09'601$ 00°0% qr o’ $ MS [08F€ 009%1 08007 |J uot1
anjeA anjeA anjeA 80lid jusuiioey siseg AjuQ 19N aiej alejl ssolgy HOS Apowwio)
elo} desag dwepay nun “1INd BN
ysen fousby 1amod elulo|e) UIsyuoN
_ #O3HO NIOINO 40 LNIOd WOY4 Q3SYHONNd
NV 8E:LL N¥g W otd
# 017 83 TvHL HNOH 3IA3 x3s| W] NOILYdNID0
sqlgezl .£0.9] N¥g| N D_U HSIdOd AIANVQG NIATLS
JawwlizZ eysu] upy isn # D17 I10IH3A 1M 1H divdl M [1[31vis 40 100 40 INNODDY YO ¥O4 3HOIFV
yam ssauisng Buiop 10j nop juey] - - _ Q@wa@m . ojuj 95v9-225 (602)
Suowwos QoW % 3 =kvie) F RO RESRIENY] |RUORIPPY £6£66 BILIONED ‘0}SAPOIN
"OAY SBSURY £79

0202 ‘¢ yo4ey ‘Aepsany |

9vE8L0  #IOIL 9]eds 4 doo 37vS 40 17 pJlex UL], HMIA/ 9Y [,




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 17, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Integrity Inspections, LLC — Muiti-Task General Services Agreement for Specialty
Mechanical and Inspection Related Services; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesm METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Ge?fél Manager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:
Department:. Combustion Turbines
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [J
San Franci;g:ig?(r:;:; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [] Truckee DonnerPUD [
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 134:20



Integrity Inspections, LLC — 5 Year MTGSA
March 26, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-24 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Integrity Inspections, LLC for specialty mechanical
and inspection related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Specialty mechanical and inspection related services are required from time to time for the
operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, and by SCPPA Members. Integrity Inspections, LLC is a new vendor whom NCPA has
not had any previous agreements with. NCPA desires to enter into an agreement with this new
vendor so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful
bidder on future projects. Additionally, adding this vendor will increase the pool of qualified
vendors for these types of services. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with
Premium Inspection Company and Team Industrial.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on March 4, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on March 9, 2020, and was approved.

SR: 134:20



Integrity Inspections, LLC — 5 Year MTGSA
March 26, 2020
Page 3

Respecitfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Integrity Inspections, LLC

SR: 134:20



RESOLUTION 20-24

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH INTEGRITY
INSPECTIONS, LLC

(reference Staff Report #134:20)

WHEREAS, specialty mechanical and inspection related services are required from time to time for the
operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA), NCPA Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members;
and

WHEREAS, Integrity Inspections, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Integrity
Inspections, LLC to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Integrity Inspections, LLC, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for specialty mechanical and inspection related services, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
INTEGRITY INSPECTIONS, LLC

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Integrity Inspections, LLC, an LLC,
with its office located at 33520 Canvas Back Street, Woodland, CA 95695 (“Contractor”)
(together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2020 (“Effective Date”) in
Roseville, California.

Section1. ¥ SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Work performed,;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 22



4.3

4.4

4.5

Professional Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Contractor's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Contractor's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 22



4.6

Section 5.

Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 22



System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmiless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 22



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

7.6

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 22



8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

EEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 22



9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

101

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

1.1

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 22



11.2

1.3

Section 12.

design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 22



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

if Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 22



Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Integrity Inspections, LLC
Attention: Jay Locatelli
33520 Canvas Back Street
Woodland, CA 95695

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 22



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 22



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one

agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the

drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to

such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

INTEGRITY INSPECTIONS, LLC

Date

JAY LOCATELLI,
Owner / CEO

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-123

Page 16 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Integrity Inspections, LLC (“Contractor”) shall provide, specialty mechanical and inspection
services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency"), NCPA Members,
SCPPA, and/or SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but shall not be limited to the following:

On-Steam Services:
¢ Energy Management
e Emissions Control
¢ Engineering and Project Management Services

Turnaround/Outage Services:
e 3-D Measurement and Inspection Services
¢ Inspection (NDE/NDT)
¢ Engineering and Outage Management Services

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.

Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated

amount of expenses is as follows:

Labor 1 S.T.

Group | ASNT Level Il & 11I $136.06
Group 2 AWS CWI $132.46
Group 3 $121.41
Group 4 NACE & Level | $112.00

Equipment - NDE

Magnetic Particle Equipment 1718&2

Magnetic Particle Portable Yokes

Magnetic Particle Machines and Accessories (0-6000 amps)
Ultrasonic Equipment 7&2

Ultrasonic Thickness Meter

Ultrasonic Flaw Detector

AUT System

Phased Array Unit

HydroFORM Scanner / Chain Scanner

Cobra Tube Scanner

Transducers

Radiographic Equipment 7&2

Pick-up Truck Mounted Darkroom

Mobile Dark Room Trailer

Selenium 75 Source

Iridium 192 Source

Cobalt 60 Source

Computerized Digital RT Equipment & Software Station 3
Phosphorous Plates (for supplemental plates)
Positive Material Identification 1&2

Positive Material Identification

Positive Material Identification with Carbon Content
Ferrite Tester / Hardness Tester

Rate UOM
Ferrous & Non-Ferrous Tester (ET/RFT/MFL)
IRIS Tester

Array Probe Usage (Charge per tube inspected)
Probe Usage (Charge per tube inspected)
Analysis System

Calibration standards (Special Order Only)

O.T.
$176.58

$171.18
$154.60

$140.48

Rate
$50.00
$700.00
Rate
$75.00
$250.00
$900.00
$800.00
$250.00
$250.00

Rate
$125.00
$500.00
$300.00
$100.00
$700.00
$750.00
$40.00
Rate
$400.00
$1,000.00
$250.00

$900.00
$800.00
$12.00
$3.20
$20.00

P.T.
$217.10

$209.90
$187.79

$168.97

UOM
Shift
Shift
UOM
Shift
Shift
Shift
Shift
Shift
Shift

UOoM
Shift
Week
Shift
Shift
Shift
Shift
Shift/Each
Uom
Shift
Shift
Shift

Shift
Shift
Per Tube
Per Tube
Shift

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-123

Page 18 of 22



Tank Inspection Equipment 1&2 Rate UoMm

MFE Floor Scanner $300.00 Shift
Tank Crawler $600.00 Shift
Remote Viewing Rate UOM
Borescope $500.00 Shift

Borescope, Rental

Note: Shift is defined as 12 hours or less unless stated otherwise.
1 A minimum equipment charge of 1 single shift per day applies.
2 All Equipment rates are based on a single shift operation.

For two (2) shift usage calculate by a 2.0 multiplier

3 20 plates are provided with equipment package,

Consumable Materials - NDE Rate Uom
Radiographic Film $0.30 Square Inch
1Dry Magnetic Powder $25.00 Pound
14 AM Prepared Bath (Aerosol) $25.00 Can
Bulk Wet Magnetic Particle $25.00 Quart
Aerosol Cleaner $25.00 Can
Aerosol Penetrate $25.00 Can
Aerosol Penetrant Developer $25.00 Can
Cold Couplant (Ambient to120°F) $10.00 Quart
Medium Temperature Couplant (120°F to 400°F) $25.00 Ounce
High Temperature Couplant (400°F to 900°F) $75.00  Tube
Brinell Hardness Reading per Impression (Plus Labor) $5.00 Each
Impression
50 Ib. Box of Lint Free Rags $100.00 Box
Miscellaneous Rate UOM
Site Vehicle 2 Ton to % Ton $100.00 Shift
Site Vehicle 1 Ton or Larger (DOT Required) $125.00 Shift
Portable Generator w/fuel $50.00 Day
All Third Party Rental Equipment, Supplies, Materials, Freight Cost + 10%
Travel, Meals & Lodging Rate UOM
Lodging & Meals $180.00
Lodging - (where adequate or affordable lodging is unavailable)  Cost + 10%
Meals Only $50.00
Mileage (Minimum 20 miles per Trip) $0.75 Mile
Airfares (Timekeeper rates may apply for Managing) Cost + 10%
Rental Vehicle and Gasoline Cost +10%

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

Integrity Inspections, LLC

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 21 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

9)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-123
Northern California Power Agency and Integrity Inspections, LLC.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 17, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Hunt & Sons, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment,
Materials and Supplies for Diesel Fuels, Propane, Unleaded Fuel, Oils and Lubricants;
Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma J METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F'a""i;::igaTyr:l::; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD [

City of Healdsburg [  City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

If other, please specify

SR: 135:20



Hunt & Sons, Inc. — 5 Year MTEMS
March 26, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-25 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Hunt & Sons, Inc.
for the purchase of diesel fuels, propane, unleaded fuels, oils and lubricants, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

BACKGROUND:

Diesel fuels, propane, unleaded fuels, oils and lubricants are required from time to time for the
operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA had a previous
agreement in place with Hunt & Sons, Inc., which is running low on funds and expiring. NCPA
has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working relationship with the vendor. NCPA
desires to enter into this agreement so established terms and conditions are in place should this
vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. NCPA has agreements in place for similar
purchases with George Lowry, Inc., Redwood Coast Fuels, Southern Counties Lubricants, LLC,
Valley Pacific Petroleum Service, Inc. and Westgate Petroleum.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on March 4, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on March 9, 2020, and was approved.

SR: 135:20



Hunt & Sons, Inc. — 5 Year MTEMS
March 26, 2020
Page 3

Respecitfully submitted,

oty & e

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
o Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Hunt &
Sons, Inc.

SR: 135:20



RESOLUTION 20-25

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT,
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES WITH HUNT & SONS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #135:20)

WHEREAS, diesel fuels, propane, unleaded fuels, oils and lubricants are periodically required from
time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA); and

WHEREAS, Hunt & Sons, Inc. is a supplier of these materials; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials
and Supplies with Hunt & Sons, Inc. to provide such materials as needed at all NCPA facilities in an amount
not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of
Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Hunt & Sons, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for the purchase of diesel fuels,
propane, unleaded fuels, oils and lubricants, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



MULTI-TASK
AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF
EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
HUNT & SONS, INC.

This Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies (‘Agreement”) is made by
and between the Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency, with its main offices
located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA, 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Hunt & Sons, Inc.,
(“Supplier”), whose principal office is located at 5750 South Watt Avenue, Sacramento, CA
95829 (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2020 (the
“Effective Date”).

Section 1. SCOPE. In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Supplier is willing to deliver the equipment, materials and supplies (“Goods”)
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein to the designated Project Site,
DDP, when requested by the Agency. Supplier shall be responsible at its sole expense for
delivering the Goods to the designated Project Site and title shall not pass until the Agency
accepts delivery at this Site. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this
Agreement and Exhibit A, this Agreement shall prevail.

Section 2. PROJECT SITE. Goods provided under this Agreement by Supplier may include
Goods delivered directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members. The “designated Project Site”, as that term is used herein,
shall mean the site for delivery, DDP, whether at a facility owned and/or operated by Agency, an
Agency member, SCPPA, or a SCPPA member.

Section 3. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall begin upon Effective Date and
shall end on the earlier of five (5) years after the Effective Date or when Supplier has provided
to Agency the Goods described in Exhibit A.

Section 4. REQUEST FOR GOODS. At such time that Agency determines to have Supplier
provide Goods under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase
Order shall identify the specific Goods to be provided ("Requested Goods"), may include a not-
to-exceed cap or monetary cap on the Requested Goods and all related expenditures
authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Goods
shall be delivered. Supplier shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency’s
issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Supplier chooses not to
provide the Requested Goods. If Supplier agrees to provide the Requested Goods, begins to
provide the Requested Goods, or does not respond within the seven day period specified, then
Supplier will have agreed to provide the Requested Goods on the terms set forth in the
Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 5. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Supplier for the Goods an
amount not to exceed FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($500,000.00) as total
compensation under this Agreement, which includes all shipping, taxes (if applicable),
insurance, delivery charges, and any other fees, costs or charges. This dollar amount is not a

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 1 of 11



guarantee that Agency will pay that_full amount to the Supplier, but is merely a limit of potential
Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Invoices. Supplier shall have ninety (90) days after the delivery of Goods to
invoice Agency for all amounts due and outstanding under this Agreement.
Supplier shall include the number of the Purchase Order which authorized the
Goods for which Supplier is seeking payment. In the event Supplier fails to
invoice Agency for all amounts due within such ninety (90) day period, Supplier
waives its right to collect payment from Agency for such amounts. All invoices
shall be submitted to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Atin: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Payment. Agency shall pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of the receipt of
any invoice for Goods satisfactorily received.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Supplier shall have ninety (90) days
after delivery of the Requested Goods to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Goods. In the event Supplier fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Supplier is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Goods from Agency.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this

Agreement, Supplier, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below for the period covered by the Agreement.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Workers’ Compensation. If Supplier employs any person, Supplier shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Supplier with
limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident.

Automobile Liability. Supplier shall maintain automobile liability insurance for
the term of this Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any
vehicle, whether or not owned by the Supplier, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $3,000,000 per each accident, with
$5,000,000 aggregate. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering
all motor vehicles and mobile equipment utilized in the transport of the Goods to
the Agency's Project Site.

Commercial General Liability (CGL). Supplier shall maintain commercial
general liability coverage covering Goods, including product liability, covering any
loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily injury,
death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out of
the operations of Supplier in regard to this Agreement with not less than

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.

Revd 5/2/2018

Page 2 of 11



$3,000,000/$5,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, on an
occurrence basis. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

6.4  General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

6.5 All Policies Requirements.

6.5.1 Verification of Coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Supplier shall, at the sole option of the Agency, provide
Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that demonstrates compliance
with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein and (2) policy
endorsements to the automobile liability policy and the CGL policy adding
the Northern California Power Agency as an Additional Insured and
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to
this Agreement and that Agency’s insurance is excess and non-
contributing.

6.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Supplier agrees
to provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation
or reduction in scope or amount of the insurance required under this
Agreement.

6.5.3 Waiver of Subrogation. Supplier agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Supplier may acquire from Supplier by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Supplier agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be
necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.

6.5.4 Self-Insured Retention. Supplier shall declare the amount of the self-
insured retention to the Agency; the amount shall be not more than
$100,000.

6.5.5 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Supplier provides Goods
to Agency members, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this
Agreement, Supplier shall provide certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 6.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member.

6.6 Pollution Insurance. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous
materials, then Contractor shall obtain and maintain Contractors' Pollution
Liability Insurance of not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for any one
occurrence and not less than four million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate. Any
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such insurance shall be on “an occurrence” basis.
In addition, Contractor shall ensure that such insurance complies with any
applicable requirements of the California Department of Toxic Substances
Control and California regulations relating to the transport of hazardous materials
(Health & Safety Code sections 25160 et seq.).

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 3 of 11



“Hazardous Materials” means any toxic or hazardous substance, hazardous
material, dangerous or hazardous waste, dangerous good, radioactive material,
petroleum or petroleum-derived products or by-products, or any other chemical,
substance, material or emission, that is regulated, listed, or controlled pursuant to
any national, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, directive, regulation, or other
legal requirement of the United States.

Section 7. WARRANTY. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or
public policy, or any other warranties provided by Supplier, Supplier warrants that all Goods are
free from defects in design and workmanship; comply with applicable federal, state and local
laws and regulations; are new, of good quality and workmanship, and free from defects; are
suitably safe and sufficient for the purpose for which they are normally used; and are not subject
to any liens or encumbrances. Supplier shall provide all Goods in accordance with all

applicable engineering, construction and other codes and standards, in accordance with prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement applicable to
such Goods, all with the degree of high quality and workmanship expected from purveyors
engaged in the practice of providing materials and supplies of a similar nature. Moreover, if,
during the term of this Agreement (or during the one (1) year period following the term hereof,
unless Supplier’'s warranty is for greater than one (1) year, in which case Supplier's warranty
shall be applied), the Goods provided by Supplier under this Agreement fail due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Supplier shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's satisfaction.

Section 8. INDEMNIFICATION AND SUPPLIER’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

8.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Supplier from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Supplier acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

8.2  Scope. Supplier shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to
the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Supplier, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

8.3 Transfer of Title. Supplier shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and
control of the Goods and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused
thereby, including without limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of
any Goods, until Agency accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 4 of 11



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

Agreement, such acceptance shall occur after Supplier or its agents complete
transfer of the Goods into appropriate containers, machinery, storage tanks or
other storage apparatus identified by NCPA. In the event a spill, leak, discharge
or release requires notification to a federal, state or local regulatory agency,
Supplier shall be responsible for all such notifications. Should Supplier be
required to remedy or remove Goods as a result of a leak, spill, release or
discharge of Goods into the environment at Agency's Site or elsewhere, Supplier
agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site to a level sufficient to
receive a “No Further Action Required” or “Closure Letter” from the appropriate
regulatory authority.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Supplier and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements,
either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference
herein.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Law. Supplier shall comply with all applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to this Agreement
and the Goods supplied hereunder.

Construction of Agreement. The Parties agree that the usual construction of
an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply here.

Supplier's Status. Supplier is an independent contractor and not an employee
or agent of NCPA.

Non-assignment. Supplier may not assign this Agreement without the prior
written consent of NCPA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Governing Law. This Agreement and all matters pertaining to it, shall be
governed by the laws of the State of California and venue shall lie in Placer
County or in the county to which the Goods are delivered.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.

Revd 5/2/2018

Page 5 of 11



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

9.10 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

9.11 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

9.12 Conflict of Interest. Supplier may serve other clients, but none whose activities
within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location,
would place Supplier in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the
Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et
seq.

Supplier shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to
this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

9.13 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency'’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

9.14 Notices. Any written notice to Supplier shall be sent to:

Hunt & Sons, Inc.
5750 South Watt Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95829

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 6 of 11



9.15 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Supplier
agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

9.15.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute.

9.15.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

9.15.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

9.15.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

9.15.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

9.15.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

9.16 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, and Supplier's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto
and a Purchase Order or the Supplier's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the
Supplier’s Proposal (if any), the Purchase Order shall control.

9.17 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Supplier shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit B.

9.18 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Supplier shall, at the
same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

9.19 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Supplier provide Goods to an Agency member, SCPPA and/or

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014

Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 7 of 11



a SCPPA member (collectively for the purposes of this section only "Member”)
pursuant to section 2, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Goods relating
to such Member.

9.20 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY HUNT & SONS, INC.

Date: Date:
RANDY S. HOWARD, JOE HUNT,
General Manager President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 8 of 11



EXHIBIT A
PURCHASE LIST

Hunt & Sons, Inc. ("Supplier") shall provide the following as requested by the Northern
California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by Agency.

Materials to include, but not be limited to, the following:
* Diesel Fuel
*  Propane
* Unleaded Fuels
* Oils & Lubricants
* Fuel Equipment

Rates will be proposed at the time materials are needed.

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 9 of 11



EXHIBIT B
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Suppliers

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

Hunt & Sons. Inc.

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 10 of 11



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

Hunt & Sons, Inc.

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20 __

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies GS-VEN-2020-014
Northern California Power Agency and Hunt & Sons, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 Page 11 of 11



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 17, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Coffman Engineers, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement
for Fire Protection, Mechanical, Electrical, or Civil Engineering Services; Applicable to the
following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members,
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma , METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power L[] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a“"‘;g‘l’oiga%’r:n’:; 0  CityofPaloAlto O  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [ Other [

if other, please specify

SR: 136:20



Coffman Engineers, Inc. — 5 Year MTPSA
March 26, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-26 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc. for fire protection,
mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000
over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services are required from time to time
for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA Members. Coffman Engineers, Inc. is a new vendor for
NCPA. NCPA Geothermal staff contacted Coffman Engineers, Inc. because they offer California
Registered Fire Protection Engineer (FPE) services. After having met with this vendor, staff
recommends that NCPA enter into an enabling agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc., so
established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on
future projects. Execution of this enabling agreement will also increase the pool of qualified
vendors willing to work in the more remote location of NCPA's Geothermal facility, which will
result in more competitive bidding when services are needed. NCPA has agreements in place
for similar services with Sabah International, Inc., and ORR Protection Systems, Inc. (pending
approval).

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the overall best value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on March 4, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 136:20



Coffman Engineers, Inc. — 5 Year MTPSA
March 26, 2020
Page 3

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on March 9, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

@"’*L& R/

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
» Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between NCPA and Coffman Engineers,
Inc.

SR: 136:20



RESOLUTION 20-26

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH COFFMAN
ENGINEERS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #136:20)

WHEREAS, fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services are required from time
to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power
Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA
Members; and

WHEREAS, Coffman Engineers, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman
Engineers, Inc., to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement
with Coffman Engineers, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or civil
engineering services, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or
by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



/

2 PURLIY A3ERCY
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
COFFMAN ENGINEERS, INC.

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Coffman Engineers, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 1939 Harrison Street, Suite 320, Oakland, CA 94612
(“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2020
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 1 of 18



specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services
on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT
TO EXCEED ONE MILLION doliars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B.
This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the
Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

21 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period,;

= Services performed,;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed for time
and materials tasks (unless such records are requested pursuant to
Section 9.3), under the Agreement by Consultant and each employee,
agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder;
and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’'s Scope of Work identifies time
and materials tasks (unless such records are requested pursuant to
Section 9.3), for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable
time entries showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours
spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and each
reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency’s
reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025

Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 18



2.3

24

2.5

Section 3.

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90)
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Services.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this

Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall be
at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The

Muiti-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 18



policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

4.4  All Policies Requirements.

4.41 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 4 of 18



4.5

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides
services to Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members,
Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA or Agency member for which the Services are
to be performed.

4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consuitant shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent that they
arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly
(“Liabilities”). Such obligations to hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall
not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the negligence, active
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev’d 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 18



Section 6.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/2/2019

Page 6 of 18



6.4

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

8.1

unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consuitant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency or Consultant may cancel this Agreement at any time and
without cause upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the other party.

In the event of termination by Agency, Consultant shall be entitled to
compensation for Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of
termination; Agency, however, may condition payment of such compensation
upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as
referenced in Section 9.1 hereof. In the event of termination by Consultant,
Consultant shall satisfactorily complete ongoing tasks prior to the effective date

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 18



8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

of termination and deliver to Agency any or all records or documents, as
referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consulitant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 18



9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 9 of 18



Section 10.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 18



10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Thomas DeMasi, P.E.

Coffman Engineers, Inc.

1939 Harrison Street, Suite 320
Oakland, CA 94612

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025

Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 18



agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 12 of 18



legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this Section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Services
relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY COFFMAN ENGINEERS, INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager JEFF WEBER, P.E., SE
Vice President, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 13 of 18



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Coffman Engineers, Inc. (“Consultant”) shall provide fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or
civil engineering services as requested by Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any
facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members.

Such services will include, but are not limited to:

Providing professionally engineered “stamped” drawings
AutoCAD drawings

Technical specifications

Piping and instrumentation diagrams

Engineering evaluations, calculations and reports

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 14 of 18



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount

set forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and
an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Refer To Rate Sheet Below.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 15 of 18



SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATES

Effective January 1, 2020
ENGINEERING* ACOUSTICS FIRE PROTECTION**
CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATES HOURLY RATES HOURLY RATES
Principal il $265.00 - $275.00
Principal #l $255.00 - $265.00
Principal | $245.00 $245.00 $255.00
General Manager $245.00 - -
Operations Manager - - $250.00
Senior Discipline Manager $215.00 - $245,00
Senior Discipline Engineer $195.00 - $235.00
senior Discipline Consuitant - $210.00 -
Discipline Manager $195.00 - $215.00
Discipline Consultant - $200.00 -
Senlor Project Manager $195.00 - $195.00
Senior Project Engineer $185.00 - -
Project Manager 1l $185.00 - -
Senior Engineer $180.00 - $215.00
Senior Consultant - $192.00 -
Project Manager $180.00 - $165.00
Engineer Il $160.00 - $190.00
Engineer I} $140.00 - §165.00
Engineer | $130.00 -~ $140.00
Consultant I} - $170.00 -
Consultant I} -- $150.00 -
Consultant | - $130.00 -
Senior Engineering Tech - - $220.00
Engineering Tech Iii - - $120.00
Engineering Tech Ii - - $110.00
Engineering Tech | - - $100.00
Senlor Acoustical Tech -- $180.00 -
Acoustical Tech Il - $120.00 -
Acoustical Tech It - $105.00 -
Acoustical Tech | - $80.00 -
Senior Designer $145.00 $160.00 —
Designer I $136.00 $145.00 -
Designer I} $130.00 $135.00 -
Designer $115.00 $125.00 -
Drafter It $105.00 $105.00 -
Drafter | $90.00 $90.00 -
Graduate Intern (FP) - - $115.00
Engineering Intern - -- $100.00
Clerical $80.00 $80.00 $80.00
3D Scanner $100.00/Hour (on-site)
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025

Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 16 of 18



* Civil, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and structural engineering.

** Flre protection engineering and code consulting,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSE CHARGES:

1. Travel from our office will be charged as follows:
a. Auto 58 cents per mile or latest IRS standard mileage rate whichever is higher
b, Other mode: At actual times 1.1

2. Local and fong distance courier services will be charged at actual times 1.1

3, Plotting and/or reproduction of drawings, specifications, reports and calculations and additional copies will be
charged at actual times 1.1

4, Instrument rental, laboratory services, outside computer and/or consultant services will be charged at actual times
11.

These rates are effective through December 31, 2020.

Rates may be adjusted each year in response to inflation and other factors. The increase will not exceed 5% eoch year.

Any increase will be effective upon the giving of 30 days’ advance written notice to NCPA.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 17 of 18



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-025
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 18 of 18



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 16, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) 2020 Renewable Energy
Credit (REC) Program Letter of Agreement

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

P .

FROM:  TonyZimmer / METHOD OF SELECTION:
AGM, Power Management N/A

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Power Management

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [J City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
San F’a“"i;‘;:iﬁa%’r:;:; O Cityof PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs X City of Redding [ Port of Oakland X
City of Gridley City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg X City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

If other, please specify

SR: 139:20



Approval of WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement
03/26/2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt and approve the Letter of Agreement
developed for administering the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) 2020 Renewable
Energy Credit (REC) Program (WAPA 2020 REC Program), and authorize the General Manager
of NCPA to execute the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement, on behalf of NCPA,
including any non-substantive modifications to WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Members are subject to a variety of environmental
mandates that require the use of RECs to demonstrate compliance with the state’s legislative
mandate and goal that a significant portion of retail sales be served by renewable energy
resources.

The NCPA Members are preference power customers of WAPA, and purchase a percentage
share of the Base Resource product, which consists of various products including the energy,
capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric facilities that make up the
Central Valley Project (CVP).

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement, WAPA has established a
program to distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers. Certain
NCPA members who have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested
NCPA to enter into the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement on their behalf', in order
for NCPA to receive RECs from WAPA.

The WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement specifies the terms and conditions under
which RECs are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers. The WAPA 2020 REC
Program Letter of Agreement has a term of one (1) year, expiring July 31, 2021; applies to RECs
produced by CVP facilities in 2020; and, allows either party to terminate the agreement upon a
30-day prior written notice. RECs received pursuant to the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of
Agreement are nontransferable, except NCPA may transfer RECs to members it represents
under the agreement. WAPA does not warrant or represent that the RECs provided from the
CVP will satisfy any Federal or State renewable energy mandates.

A draft of the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement is attached to this staff report for
your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with entering into the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement are
estimated to be less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according
to Base Resource percentages of the represented Members. NCPA'’s administrative costs for

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.

SR: 139:20



Approval of WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement
03/26/2020
Page 3

development and administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance
with approved cost allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution 20-29
¢ WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement

SR: 139:20



RESOLUTION 20-29

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF WAPA 2020 REC PROGRAM LETTER OF AGREEMENT

(reference Staff Report #139:20)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Members are subject to a variety of
environmental mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to demonstrate compliance
with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that a significant portion of retail sales be served by renewable
energy resources; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Members are preference power customers of Western Area Power
Administration (WAPA), and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of
various products including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric
facilities that make up the Central Valley Project (CVP); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement, WAPA has established a
program to distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers, and certain NCPA
Members who have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into
the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement on their behalf', in order for NCPA to receive RECs from
WAPA; and

WHEREAS, the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement specifies the terms and conditions
under which RECs are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers, including specifying that RECs
received pursuant to the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement are nontransferable, except NCPA
may transfer RECs to Members it represents under the agreement; and

WHEREAS, costs associated with entering into the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement are
estimated to be less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base
Resource percentages of the represented Members, and NCPA’s administrative costs for development and
administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopt and approve the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement, and authorize the General
Manager of NCPA to execute the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement, on behalf of NCPA,
including any non-substantive modifications to the WAPA 2020 REC Program Letter of Agreement
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and Plumas-Sierra Rural
Electric Cooperative.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-29 -2-



Department of Energy
Western Area Power Administration
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region
114 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 95630-4710

Letter of Agreement 20-SNR-XXXX

Mr. Randy Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Howard:

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is a customer of the Western Area
Power Administration's (WAPA) Sierra Nevada Region (SNR) and has executed
Base Resource Contract 04-SNR-00782 with WAPA. Some of SNR's customers
have requested that SNR make the renewable energy credits (RECs) that may be
associated with SNR's hydropower generation available to them to assist in meeting
their renewable requirements. Although SNR is willing to initiate a 2020 REC
Program, SNR does notwarrant or represent that the RECs it provides under this
program will satisfy any Federal or State renewable portfolio standards.

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) provides the terms and conditions under which SNR
will apportion RECs to participants in the 2020 REC Program in association with
power generated in 2020.

1. Participation in SNR's REC Program:

1.1 Inorder to receive an apportionment of RECs from SNR's REC
Program, NCPA must be a Western Renewable Energy Generation
Information System (WREGIS) Account Holder. SNR will not apportion
or create RECs for NCPA until its WREGIS Account Holder status has
been verified.

1.2 Project use customers may participate in SNR'S REC Program by
providing written notice to WAPA at least 60 days prior to the first day of
the first month that such customer desires to begin participation.

1.3 All RECs provided under this LOA shall be from the vintages January
2020 through December 2020.



Letter of Agreement 20-SNR-XXXX

1.4 Forthe purposes of participating in SNR's REC Program under this LOA,

NCPA shall include the following members and the base resource
percentages they have assigned to NCPA:

1.4.1 Alameda Municipal Power

1.4.2 Biggs, City of

1.4.3 Gridley, City of

1.4.4 Healdsburg, City of

1.4.5 Lodi, City of

1.4.6 Lompoc, City of

1.4.7 Oakland, Port of

1.4.8 Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative
1.4.9 Ukiah, City of

Definitions:

2.1

2.2

2.3

"CVP RECs" shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from Central Valley Project hydropower
generation.

"Stampede RECs" shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from the Washoe Project hydropower
generation.

"Unclaimed RECs" shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with SNR's hydropower generation from Lewiston, Nimbus and
Stampede that are not being claimed by other preference or project use
customers.

Apportionment of RECs:

SNR will apportion the RECs in a three-step process. Calculation of
apportionments will be completed as follows:

3.1

CVP RECs:

3.1.1  SNR will calculate the percentage contribution from each unit/project
registered with WREGIS to the amount of Base Resource generated
each month.

3.1.2 SNR will then calculate the amount of Base Resource NCPA
received each month based on the sum of power scheduled to NCPA
from its Base Resource percentage and its contribution to or
allocation from the Hourly Exchange Program.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Letter of Agreement 20-SNR-XXXX

3.1.3 Finally, SNR will apply NCPA's actual month's Base Resource
percentage as determined in Subsection 3.1.2 above to the CVP
RECs associated with that month's Base Resource from each
unit/project as determined in 3.1.1 to determine NCPA's
apportionment of CVP RECs for each month in calendar year 2020.

Unclaimed RECs:

3.2.1  SNRwill normalize the participating customers' Base Resource
percentages for calendar year 2019 by dividing each customer's
Base Resource percentage by the total of all participating customers'
Base Resource percentages.

3.2.2 SNRwill then apply NCPA's normalized percentage to the total
Unclaimed RECs for each month in 2020 to determine NCPA's
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs.

3.2.3 NCPA acknowledges that its normalized percentage, used for the
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs, may change during the term of
this LOA depending on the number of participating customers.

Stampede RECs:

Stampede RECs will be held in WREGIS until SNR can determine the
annual amount of RECs due to the Truckee Donner Public Utility District
(TDPUD) and the City of Fallon (Fallon) before allocating the Stampede
RECs to others. Once SNR has determined the percentage of the
Stampede RECs to be provided to TDPUD and Fallon due to their
contributions to the Washoe Project, the remaining Stampede RECs will be
apportioned to the participants pursuant to the procedures provided in
Subsections 3.1 and 3.2 above.

SNR will transfer NCPA's CVP and Unclaimed RECs apportionments
through WREGIS after the RECs have been created by WREGIS.

SNR will transfer Stampede RECs apportionments through WREGIS after
the TDPUD and Fallon percentage has been determined and the Stampede
RECs have been created by WREGIS.

Nontransferable:

NCPA hereby acknowledges and agrees that RECs associated with WAPA power
are neither transferable nor available for resale by NCPA; Except That, NCPA may
transfer RECs received through SNR's REC Program to the members listed in
Subsection 1.4 above.



Letter of Agreement 20-SNR-XXXX

5. Compensation to WAPA:

5.1 WAPA's costs to administer SNR's REC Program will be paid by those
participants receiving an apportionment of SNR's RECs through WREGIS.
Each participant's costs will be determined based on the participant's pro
rata share of RECs. WAPA's costs will include, but are not limited to, the

following:

5.1.1 WAPA'’s costs to joint WREGIS as an account holder;

5.1.2 WAPA'’s costs for WREGIS to create RECs;

51.3 WAPA'’s costs for transferring RECs from its WREGIS account to

participant's WREGIS account;

5.1.4 Any other costs WAPA may incur for its participation in WREGIS to
operate this program; and

5.1.5 Any other costs WAPA may incur for a third-part due to providing

Services hereunder.

5.2 These costs will be provided as a line item on NCPA's monthly electric
service bill from WAPA.

6. General Power Contract Provisions:

The General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007, are attached
hereto and are hereby made a part of this LOA the same as ifthey had been
expressly set forth herein.

7. Term:

7.1 This LOA must be signed by NCPA on or before June 1, 2020 in order for
NCPA to participate in SNR's 2020 REC Program.

7.2 This LOA shall become effective on June 1,2020, and shall terminate
July 31, 2021; Provided, that either NCPA or SNR may terminate this LOA
upon 30 days advance written notice. All obligations created under this LOA
while in effect shall remain until satisfied.



Letter of Agreement 20-SNR-XXXX

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions written above, please
indicate your approval by signing and dating both originals of this LOA and
return one to Ms. Sandee Peebles (N6213) at this office. If you have any
questions, please contact Sandee at (916) 353-4454.

Sincerely,

Arun K. Sethi
Vice President of Power
Marketing for Sierra Nevada
Region
In Duplicate
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:

Title:

Address:

Date:




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 16, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

N

Division: Power Management

Department. Power Management

AGM, Power Management N/A

If other, please describe:

FROM:  TonyZmmer /' /-  METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O

X X 0O X

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

X X

X

o O O

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X X O

X

o O

SR: 138:20



Approval of Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
March 26, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt a resolution approving Exhibit C, Revision
24 to Contact 96-SNR-00110, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Exhibit C,
Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive
modifications to Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

In December 2004, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) executed the Agreement for the
Funding of Operation and Maintenance for Central Valley Project Power Facilities (O&M
Agreement) with the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), Bureau of Reclamation
(Reclamation) and other Central Valley Project (CVP) customers (Contract 96-SNR-00110).
Under the O&M Agreement, CVP customers provide funds for specific operations, maintenance,
and capital projects related to the CVP power plants, or the delivery of CVP energy, that would
otherwise not be undertaken due to limited federal appropriations. These activities increase the
quantity and enhance the reliability of energy delivered to NCPA under the Base Resource
contract. WAPA returns funds to NCPA as a bill credit on its power bills. NCPA staff participate
in the review and approval of projects chosen for funding, along with other WAPA customers who
participate in the program.

NCPA is a party to the O&M Agreement, on behalf of certain NCPA Members who have
assigned their Base Resource percentages to NCPA to administer! (Assigning Members).
WAPA periodically requests participants to the O&M Agreement to execute revisions to the
individual Customer Commitment and Contribution, or Exhibit C, which reflect allocated shares of
the total funding obligation approved through the customer approval process.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Execution of Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 would establish a commitment by
NCPA, specifically the Assigning Members, to provide funds associated with Federal Fiscal Year
2024 in the amount of $11,766,920.94. The obligation to provide funds survives termination of
the O&M Agreement, but any and all future obligations would be absolved coincident with the
termination of the Base Resource contract.

WAPA will invoice and collect funds according to a monthly schedule. Approximately one (1)
month following payment, WAPA will return funds to NCPA through a bill credit on the monthly
WAPA power bill. Therefore, the net fiscal impact is approximately zero dollars ($0.00). Costs
associated with this commitment will be allocated to the Assigning Members based on Western
Allocation percentages.

Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 has been attached to this staff report for your
reference.

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Ukiah, and Port of Oakland and
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.

SR: 138:20



Approval of Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110
March 26, 2020
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

et & 5]

General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution 20-28
o Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110

SR: 138:20



RESOLUTION 20-28

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF EXHIBIT C, REVISION 24 TO CONTRACT 96-SNR-00110

(reference Staff Report #138:20)

WHEREAS, in December 2004, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) executed the Agreement for
the Funding of Operation and Maintenance for Central Valley Project Power Facilities (O&M Agreement) with
the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) and other Central
Valley Project (CVP) customers (Contract 96-SNR-00110); and

WHEREAS, under the O&M Agreement, CVP customers provide funds for specific operations,
maintenance, and capital projects related to the CVP power plants, or the delivery of CVP energy, that would
otherwise not be undertaken due to limited federal appropriations; and

WHEREAS, NCPA is a party to the O&M Agreement, on behalf of certain NCPA Members who have
assigned their Base Resource percentages to NCPA to administer’ (Assigning Members), and WAPA
periodically requests participants to the O&M Agreement to execute revisions to the individual Customer
Commitment and Contribution, or Exhibit C, which reflect allocated shares of the total funding obligation
approved through the customer approval process; and

WHEREAS, execution of Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 would establish a
commitment by NCPA, specifically the Assigning Members, to provide funds associated with federal Fiscal
Year 2024 in the amount of $11,766,920.94, and the obligation to provide funds survives termination of the
O&M Agreement, but any and all future obligations would be absolved coincident with the termination of the
Base Resource contract; and

WHEREAS, WAPA will invoice and collect funds according to a monthly schedule, and approximately
one (1) month following payment, WAPA will return funds to NCPA through a bill credit on the monthly WAPA
power bill, and the net fiscal impact is approximately zero dollars ($0.00), and costs associated with this
commitment will be allocated to the Assigning Members based on Western Allocation percentages; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorizes the General Manager
of NCPA to execute Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-
substantive modifications to Exhibit C, Revision 24 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel.

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Ukiah, and Port of Oakland and
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-28 -2-



Northern California Power Agency
Exhibit C, Revision 24 to
Contract 96-SNR-00110

EXHIBIT C
(Individual Customer Commitment and Contribution)

1. This Exhibit C, Revision 24, to be effective under and as a part of Contract
96-SNR-00110 (Agreement), shall become effective upon execution; and shall remain in effect
until either superseded by another Exhibit C or termination of the Contract.

2. The Northern California Power Agency agrees to make a Contribution pursuant to
Section 8 of the Agreement for the Fiscal Years (FY) and in the amounts specified in Column 6
of the table in Section 3 below.

3. Please specify your Contribution commitment level in Column 6.
Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Fair-Share Minimum Revision 23 Proposed Revision 24
FY Funding Amount Funding Contribution Revision 24 Contribution
Amount! Commitment Contribution Commitment

Commitment
Level Amount

Level Amount Level Amount

2021 | $8,230,832.22 | $1,267,441.31 $8,230,832.00 n/a $8,230,832.00
2022 | $8,588,447.97 | $1,256,598.18 | $8,588,447.97 n/a $8,588,447.97
2023 | $10,931,542.95 1,310,137.14 | $10,931,542.95 n/a $10,931,542.95
2024 | $11,766,920.94 $1,302,951.28 n/a $11,766,920.94

4. Fair-Share Funding Level amounts and Contribution commitment amounts, if any, are

not shown for FYs prior to FY 2021 in the above table. For that information refer to an earlier
revision of Exhibit C.

The signature below commits the Customer named to make Contributions in the amounts
shown in the above table, but not greater than the amount indicated in the latest revision of the
Contribution commitment level for a specific FY.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:

Name: Randy S. Howard

Title: General Manager
Attest Address: 651 Commerce Drive
By: Roseville, CA 95678
Title: Date:

' To participate on the Governance Board, a Customer must contribute at least 1/12 of its share of the estimated
annual O&M cost for the FY that is four (4) years out from the current FY. This minimum amount is set forth in
Column 3 of this Exhibit.

Page 1 of 1



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: March 17, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT:

March 26, 2020

Lodi Energy Center 2020 Spring Outage

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

~

&

FROM:

Division:

Department:

_ 7
Joel Ledesma- /ﬂ f .

Assistant General Manager

Generation Services

Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Competitive Pricing Process

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

O O

X

Rapid Transit

X

City of Biggs

X

City of Gridley

]

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

X

O O 0O X

X<

(]

City of Shasta Lake

X

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

X

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

X O O

Other

Azusa, CDWR,

Modesto Irrigation, PWRPA

SR: 137:20




Lodi Energy Center 2020 Spring Outage
March 26, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-27 authorizing the Lodi Energy Center 2020 Spring Outage and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the outage in accordance with NCPA purchasing
policies and procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost not to
exceed $2,060,000.

BACKGROUND:

The Lodi Energy Center has a planned outage scheduled for May 1-31, 2020 for work related to
the 2020 Spring Outage. During the outage, the LEC team will complete preventative
maintenance work on equipment that cannot be worked on while the unit is operating without
affecting the output of the facility. NCPA will hire a number of contractors to perform work during
the 2020 Spring Outage. This work is independent from the ongoing LEC Turbine Replacement
Project.

Listed below are highlights of major work to be performed as a part of the 2020 Spring Outage:

1. Steam Turbine
a. Condenser Maintenance
2. Water Treatment
a. General Maintenance
b. Overhaul
3. HRSG/ Steam
a. HRSG Maintenance
b. HRSG Cleaning
¢. High Energy Pipe Survey
d. Hot Spots
4. Balance of Plant
a. Heat Exchanger Service
b. Service Water Pipe
5. Incidentals
Crane
Toilets
Trailers / Guard
Forklift / Manlift
Scaffold
Confined Space

~pap o

FISCAL IMPACT:

2020 Spring Outage Anticipated Cost
Gas Turbine $80,000
Steam Turbine $230,000
Water Treatment $50,000
Electrical Systems $65,000

HRSG / Steam $750,000
Balance of Plant $352,000
Incidentals $233,000

SR: 137:20



Lodi Energy Center 2020 Spring Outage
March 26, 2020
Page 3

Contingency $300,000
TOTAL $2,060,000

The budgetary funds to complete the 2020 Spring Outage include $730,000 of pre-collected
funds in the Maintenance Reserve (Account # 265-009-005-610-044-002). Additional funds in
the amount of $412,567 were anticipated in the Fixed Maintenance and $917,433 in the O&M
Project Annual Outage. All items are a part of the FY20 Routine O&M budget.

SELECTION PROCESS:

All of the work has been put out for bid to qualified contractors and the contractors providing the
best overall value to NCPA will be awarded the work. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA

Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27,
2013 for this class of work and was filed in San Joaquin County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW
The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant

Committee on March 9, 2020, and was approved.

espectfully submitted,

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)
- Resolution

SR: 137:20



RESOLUTION 20-27

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY APPROVING THE LODI
ENERGY CENTER 2020 SPRING OUTAGE

(reference Staff Report #137:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains the Lodi
Energy Center on behalf of the project participants; and

WHEREAS, the Lodi Energy Center has an outage scheduled for May 1-21, 2020 for work
related to the 2020 Spring Outage; and

WHEREAS, during the outage, the Lodi Energy Center team will complete preventative
maintenance work on equipment that cannot be worked on while the unit is operating without affecting
the output of the facility; and

WHEREAS, NCPA will bid out the work to be performed according to NCPA procurement
policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions
of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA
Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013
for this class of work and was filed in San Joaquin County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California
Power Agency authorizes the Lodi Energy Center 2020 Spring Outage, and delegates authority to the
General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for
the outage in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures without further approval by
the Commission, for a total cost not to exceed $2,060,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by the
following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



y
F l/

4 y

/ A

/_,_/ \ N C PA Agenda ltem: 19

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

March 19, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  March 26, 2020

SUBJECT: Proposed Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21

AGENDA CATEGORY: Informational

FROM: Monty Hanks METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General Manager /
CFO NA

Division: Administrative Services If other, please describe:

Department: Accounting & Finance

A status report, budget preview and presentation for this year’s preparation
will be provided at the meeting.



	Draft_Minutes_02202020
	Item_3_Support_Services_Program_Status_Report
	Item_5_March_4_2020_Facilities_Committee_Meeting_Minutes
	Item_10_Feb_29_2020_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Month_Ended_Feb_29_2020
	Item_12_Disposal_of_NCPA_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Integrity_Inspections_LLC_MTGSA
	Item_14_Hunt_&_Sons_Inc_MTA_EMS
	Item_15_Coffman_Engineers_Inc_MTPSA
	Item_16_WAPA_Renewable_Energy_Credit_Program_LOA
	Item_17_Exhibit_C_Revision_24_Contract_96_SNR_00110
	Item_18_Lodi_Energy_Center_2020_Spring_Outage
	Item_19_Proposed_Annual_Budget_for_FY2020_21

